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P A YNK MOORE & HERRJNGTON, LLP 

[[RIIFIEO PUBUC ACCQUillAAIS 
EstablisKed 1945 

Independent Auditor's Report 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofthe governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund infomiation of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended April 30,2009, 
which collectively comprise the Cit/s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These 
financial statements are the responsibilrty of the City of Alexandria's management. Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairiy, in all materia! respects, the 
respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infomiation of 
the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, as of April 30,2009, and the respective changes in financial position and, 
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted In the United States of America. 

tn accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 28,2009, 
on our consideration ofthe City of Alexandria, Louisiana's intemal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on interna! 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
audit. 
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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison infomiation presented on pages 3 
through 16 and 70 through 72 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are 
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary 
information. However, we did not audit the infomiation and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fomnlng opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our 
opinion. Is fairiy stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
The summary of utility service customers and the listing of insurance in force marked "unaudited" have not 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

.eam^^bsuDiic 

October 28. 2009 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30,2009 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Alexandria's financial peri'onmance provide an overview of the 
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended April 30,2009. Please read it in conjunction with the City's 
finandal statements, which begin on page 17. 

Financial Highlights 

• The City's assets exceeded liabilities by $282.3 million. Of this total, $14.2 million in net assets are 
unrestricted, and may be used to meet future obligations ofthe City's creditors. 

• The City's net assets increased by $9.4 million during the 2009 Fiscal Year. This is the result of an 
increase of $6.9 million in net assets from govemmental activities and an increase of $2.5 million in 
net assets from business activities. 

• Unrestricted net assets increased by $3.5 in Fiscal 2009. This Is the net result of a decrease of $1.8 
from govemmental activities and an increase of $5.3 million from business type activities. 

• Unrestricted fund balance in the General Fund is $14.3 million, which amounts to approximately 
26% of the expenditures of the General Fund in Fiscal 2009. 

• The City's long-tenn debt increased by $32 million, the net effect of issuing $40 million in new debt 
offset by scheduled payments of existing debt 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities (on pages 19 and 20) provide information about the activities of the City as a whole 
and present a longer-term view of the City's finances. Fund financial statements start on page 21. For 
govemmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short tenn as well as 
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in more detail 
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds. The 
remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee 
or agent for the benefit of those outside of the govemment. . 

Reporting On the City as a Whole 

One of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is, "Is the City as a whole better off or 
worse off as a resultof the year's activities?" TheStatementof Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 
report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this questbn. 
These statements include a//assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to 
the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All ofthe current year's revenues and expenses are 
taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them. You can think of the City's net 
assets-the difference between assets and liabilities-as one way to measure the City's financial health, or 
financial position. Overtime, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its 
financialiiealtfi is improving or deteriorating. You will need to considerother non-financial factors, however, 
such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's roads, to assess the overall 
health of the C'\\)/. 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Managements Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities we divide the City into three kinds of 
activities: 

• Govemmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, 
public works and parks departments, and general administration. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise 
fees, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of 
certain services it provides. The City's utilities, sanitation and transit are reported here. 

• Component units - The City Includes two separate legal entities, the City Court and City Marshal. 
Although legally separate, these "component units" are important because the City is financially 
accountable for them. These component units present separately issued audit reports that may be 
obtained from their administrative offices located at 515 Washington Street, Alexandria, Louisiana. 

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements begin on page 21 and provide detailed information about the most significant 
funds - not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond 
covenants. However, the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money 
for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and 
other money (like grants received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development). The 
City's two kinds of funds - governmental and proprietary - use different accounting approaches. 

• Govemmental funds - Most ofthe City's basic services are reported in govemmental funds, which focus 
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for 
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called mod/fed accrua/accounting, 
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The 
govemmental fund statements pnDvide a detailed short-ierm view of the City's general govemment 
operations and the basic services it provides. Govemmental fund infomiation helps you determine 
whethertherearemoreorfewerfinancialresources that can be spent in the near future to finance the 
City's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between govemmental activities (reported 
in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and govemmental funds in a 
reconciliation following these fund financial statements. 

• Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside 
customers or to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. 
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net 
Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary 
funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the govemment-wide statements but 
provide more detail. We use internal service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) to report 
activities that provide supplies and services for the City's other programs and activities, such as the 
City's Risk Management. 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30,2009 

^ The Citv as Trustee 
j 

Reporting the City's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The City is the trustee, or ffduc/a/y, for its employees' pension plans. It is also responsible for other assets 
that, because of a trust an-angement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. All of the City's fiduciary 
activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 
on pages 31 and 32. We exclude these activities from the City's other financial statements because the City 
cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets 
reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 

Govemment Wide Financial Analysis 

The following table reflects a condensed version ofthe StatementofNet Assets displaying 2008 and 2009: 

City of Alexandria, LA 
Condensed Statement of Net Assets (in millions) 

April 30, 2008 and April 30, 2009 

2008 2009 
Govemmental 

67.3 98.3 
0 0 

146,7 160.8 

2008 2009 
Business 

18.2 20.4 
28.1 19.7 

114.1 119.6 

2008 2009 
Total 

85.5 118.7 
28.1 19.7 

260.8 280.4 

Assets 
Current & Other Assets 

Restricted Assets 

Capital Assets 

Total Assets 214.0 259.1 160.4 159.7 374.4 418.8 

Liabilities 
Cun-ent Liabilities 9.6 13.0 11.8 10.9 21.4 23.9 
Long Tenn Liabilities 37.5 72.3 42.7 40.4 80.2 112.7 

Total Liabilities 47.1 85.3 54.5 51.3 101.6 136.6 

Net Assets 
Invested in Capital Assets (Net) 128.7 140.9 82.5 87.3 211.2 228.2 
Restricted 35.8 32.3 15.2 7.6 51.0 39.9 
Unrestricted 2.5 0.7 8.2 13.5 10.7 14.2 

Total Net Assets 167.0 173.9 105.9 108.4 272.9 282.3 

As of April 30, 2009, the City's net assets total $282.3 million, showing an increase of about 3% over the 
2008 total of $272.9 million. Roughly 8 1 % of the City's total net assets reside in the Invested In Capital 
Assets category. These are land, buildings, infrastructure, equipment and other items required for the City 
to furnish its goods and services to citizens on the govemmental side of operations and customers on the 
business side of operations. These assets are not available for appropriation (spending), as they are not 
intended to be sold. Restricted assets account for $39.9 million, or 14%, of the total. Restrictions are 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

placed by entities outside the City govemment, such as bondholders. These assets are also not available 
for appropriation. The remaining $14.2 million, or 5%, of net assets Is unrestricted and is available for 
appropriation. 

The following table is a condensed version ofthe Statement of Activities displaying 2008 and 2009: 

City of Alexandria, LA 
Condensed Statement of Activities (In Millions) 

April 30, 2008 and April 30, 2009 

Revenues 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services, Fines, Fees 

Grants & Contributbns 

General Revenues: 
Sales Taxes 
Other Taxes 

Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenses 

General govemment 
Public safety 

Public works 
Community and economic 
development 

Interest on long-tenn debt 
Electricity 

Gas 
Water 
Wastewater 

Transit 
Sanitation 
Zoological Part< 
Golf Course 

Total Expenses 

Change in Net Assets before 
Transfers 

Transfers 

Increase (Decrease) In Net 
Assets 

2008 2009 

Govemmental 

4.4 

7.5 

42.0 

6.9 

3.3 
64.1 

14.5 

27.2 

15.0 

• 1.1 

1.6 

59.4 

4.7 

4.3 

9.0 

4.5 
12.4 

43.4 

7.4 

2.2 

69.9 

14.8 

29.7 

20.2 

0.8 
2.7 

68.2 

1.7 

5.2 

6.9 

2008 2009 

Business 

107.5 

1.0 

1.5 

110.0 

1.9 

60.2 
18.3 
6.9 

8.1 
3.2 
4.0 
2.2 
1.0 

105.8 

4.2 

-4.3 

-.1 

120.3 

4.9 

.4 

125.6 

1.6 

70.1 
19.1 
7.6 

8.6 
3.2 
4.4 
2.2 
1.1 

117.9 

7.7 

-5.2 

2.5 

2008 

Total 

111.9 
8.5 

0.0 
42.0 

6.9 

4.8 
174.1 

14.5 

27.2 
15.0 

1.1 
3.5 

60.2 
18.3 
6.9 
8.1 

3.2 
4.0 

2.2 
1.0 

165.2 

8.9 

0.0 

8.9 

2009 

124.8 

17.3 

0.0 
43.4 

7.4 
2.6 

195.5 

14.8 
29.7 

20.2 

0.8 
4.3 

70.1 
19.1 
7.6 

8.6 
3.2 
4.4 
2.2 
1.1 

186.1 

9.4 

0.0 

9.4 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

The City'stotai revenues were $195.5 million and total expenses were $186.1 million for Fiscal 2009. This 
results in an increase of net assets before transfers of $9,4 million. This can be broken down first by 
govemmental and business activities, then broken down further at the fund level. 

Net Assets in Govemmental Activities increased by $6.9 million for Fiscal 2009, as opposed to an increase 
of $9.0 million in 2008. Examining the expenses for the 2 years, we see that they are up from $59.4 million 
in 2008 to $68.2 million in 2009, roughly a 15% difference. We see an increase of $2.5 million in Public 
Safety, an increase of $5.2 million in Public Works, a $.3 million increase in General Govemment, and a 
$1.1 million increase in Interest on Long Term Debt These are somewhat offset by a decrease in 
Community Development $.3 million. Revenues are up $5.8 million, not showing as great an increase as 
expenses. Grants and Contributions are up $4.9, accounting for most of the increase. Sales Taxes are up 
$1.4 million, while Other Taxes are up $.5 million. Lesser changes in the remaining revenue categories 
make up the remaining difference. Increases in expenses can be deceptive in that Capital Projects Funds 
can raise or lower them in a given year depending on the progress of active constmction projects. It should 
be noted that the combined expenses for these funds are up $5.8 million from the prior year, while grants 
relating to these projects are down $3.7 million compared to the prior year. 

Business-type Activities net assets increase $2.5 million for Fiscal 2009, compared to the decrease in the 
prior year of $. 1 million. Expenses are up from $105.8 million in 2008 to $117.9 million In 2009, an increase 
of over 11 %. This increase Is largely due to Electric Fuel Cost, the City's cost for purchasing electricity for 
sale to customers, vî hich rose over the prior year by approximately $7.7 million. Expenses for Water, Gas, 
and Wastewater also reflect increases. These total roughly $2.1 million. Other minor changes round out the 
difference in expenses. Transfers to the Govemmental Activities are up $.9 million. Revenues are up from 
$110.0 million in 2008 to $125.6 in 2009. The largest categorical change is in Charges for Services, 
showing an increase of $12.9 million. This is largely due to the recovery side of the previously mentioned 
Electric Fuel Cost, and to a lesser extent Gas Fuel Cost The City was rebating on ifs annual fuel 
adjustment in 2008, but rebating a lesser rate in 2009, meaning reducing the cun-ent fuel cost as an 
adjustment for prior fuel cost. In the long njn, the City's costs for Electric and Gas fuel are passed on to the 
customers and have no effect on the City's finances. In the short mn, however, the City can be either 
recovering costs or rebating costs depending on which way fuel prices are going. The revenue of Electric 
Fuel Cost is up $10.0 million in 2009 compared to the prior year, while Gas Fuel Cost Recovery is up $2.4 
million compared to the prior year. 

Individual Fund Analysis 

We will briefly analyze the activity and fund balances of the major funds of the Governmental Funds 
category and the Business (Proprietary) Funds category, beginning with the General Fund. Differences are 
rounded to the nearest tenth of $1 million for ease of discussion. 

Govemmental Funds 

General Fund 

The General Fund ended Fiscal 2009 with a decrease in Unreserved Fund Balance of about $3.4 million. In 
short, the General Fund spent more than it took in by this amount. In order to see the change, a comparison 
of revenues and expenditures of Fiscal 2008 and 2009 is needed. 

Revenues increased by $ 1.9 million. Significant changes include an increase in Taxes of $ 1.5 million and 
Intergovemmental of $.5 million, while Investment Revenue decreased by neariy $.4 million. Other changes 
net to the remaining increase of about $.3 million in Revenues. Transfers In show an increase of $1.5 
million over the prior year, reflecting a combination of increases in the Transfers from the City Sales Tax 
Fund, Utilities System Fund, and Cost Allocation reimbursements from other funds. 

See Independent Auditor's Report 8 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

Expenditures and Transfers Out increased $3.8 million when compared to the previous year. This is due to 
a variety of factors. The City incuned neariy $.8 million in direct costs alone associated with Hunicane 
Gustav in the General Fund. A new pay plan was put into effect for emptoyees that, along v^th a new pay 
matrix for Police and Fire, contributed to labor costs increasing by $2.6 over the previous year. Operating 
Capital (purchases of vehicles, equipment, etc.) is up by $.2 million in Fiscal 2009. Transfers Out are up 
roughly $1 million from the previous year as the General Fund increased it's support of other funds such as 
Sanitation, Zoo, and Golf Course as the revenues these funds generate are not sufficient to pay their costs. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The original budget of the General Fund reflects the City's plan and financial intent at the beginning of the 
fiscal year. This is routinely adjusted during the year to better reflect actual revenues available and actual 
expenditures incun"ed. The City does its most comprehensive adjustment at Major Budget Amendment 
(MBA). Revenues and Transfers In were adjusted resulting in a net increase of slightly less than $4.4 
million (7,48%). The category of Intergovernmental Revenue had an increase of $2.3 million which included 
an increase of $.4 million in Parish Sales Tax ,$1.1 million in FEMA revenue as the City is reimbursed for 
expenditures arising from Hurricane Gustav and adjustments for grants totaling $.4 million. Interest 
Revenues were adjusted down $.2 million. Transfers In was also a major factor, with a net increase of $.6 
million as increases in Transfers from the Sales Tax Fund and Utilities System Fund more than offset 
decreases for Cost Allocations from the EnteqDrise Funds. The City originally budgeted $9.2 million in use of 
fund balance. This was adjusted up by a net of amount $1.5 million as estimated Revenues were exceeded 
by estimated Expenditures. 

Budgeted Expenditures and Transfers Out were adjusted up during tiie year by $4.4 million due to a variety 
of factors. As previously mentioned, Hurricane Gustav hit Alexandria on September 1, 2008, causing 
substantial damage. Direct Hunicane expenditures were added to the budget for$.8 millron. Overtime In \he 
various departments was Increased $1.2 million, along with Contract Labor for $.2 million, partially in 
response to Gustav. Capital Outlay was increased $.2 million, while Transfers Out were increased for a net 
of approximately $.4 million. Vehicle Maintenance & Fuel along witii Utilities were adjusted for a net of over 
$.6 million. Professional Fees in tiie Legal Division for $.3 million. Otinerrelatively minor changes account for 
the remainder. 

Fortunately, the City did not actually use $10.7 million in fund balance budgeted for Fiscal 2009, but as 
previously noted did use roughly $3.4 million. Actual revenues and transfers in exceeded budgeted figures 
by neariy $3.1 million, and actual expenditures were about $4.2 million less than budgeted expenditures. 
There were various offsets in the revenues, but the greatest factors were the Parish Sales Tax coming in at 
$1.1 million above the budgeted figure due to a one time adjustment from tiie Parish; while tiie Cost 
Allocations, i.e. reimbursements from other funds for sen/ices rendered by tiie General Fund, came in at $.7 
million above budget. The combined City Sales Tax Transfers In exceeded the budgeted amounts by $1.1 
million, and the Transfer from the Utilities System Fund exceeded the budget by $.9 million. The greatest 
factor in the expenditures coming in so much lower than budgeted is attrition; i.e., vacant employee 
positions during the year tiiat were budgeted but had no employees to be paid from them. The combined 
salary and fringes for these vacancies translated to roughly $1.9 million in reduced expenditures, even after 
adjusting budgets down at Major Budget Amendment. Capital outlay expenditures were less tiian budget by 
$.7 million, some of which will appear in Fiscal 2010 as equipment on order is delivered. Reductions in 
discretionary spending by the departments account for the remainder of the difference in General Fund 
Expenditures. 

See Independent Auditor's Report 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

The following charts represent the actual sources and uses of General Fund monies for Fiscal 2009: 

General Fund Sources 

rr^^^^^fi^i^^^^iillHHBlBttHBBft^^KBr.-.^ BTaxes 

• Licenses and permits 

D lntergc\emmental 

D Charges for services 

• Fines and fees 

B Investment re\enue 

• Other 

M Transfers in 

General Fund Uses 

• General government 
• Public safety 
D Public works 
D Principal 
• Interest and other charges 
ffi Capital outiay 

• Transfers (out) 

See Independent Auditor's Report 10 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

City Sales Tax Fund 

The City Sales Tax Fund showed an increase of .43% in revenues and decrease of 1.07% in Transfers Out 
over the previous year, a virtual standstill. This fund Is a "flow through" of three sales taxes passed by the 
voters of the City. The City Sales Tax Fund receives tiie money from these sales taxes and transfers it to 
other funds. Half of the 1976 Sales Tax is transfen-ed to tfie General Fund, while the remaining half is 
transferred to General Capital Projects Fund after Debt Service (payment on borrowing) is satisfied. The 
1998 Sales Tax and tiie 2005 Sales Tax are transferred exclusively to the General Fund. The city sales 
taxes are a major source of revenue for the General Fund and the only perpetual source of revenue for the 
General Capital Projects Fund. 

General Capital Projects Fund 

Revenues and Transfers In are down approximately $2.4 million in the General Capital Projects Fund as 
reported last year, most of which is attributable to a reduction in the Transfer from Sales Tax amounting to 
$1.9 million, while reductions in Investment Revenue of $.5 million account for most ofthe remainder As 
mentioned earlier, the only perpetual source of revenue fortiie General Capital Projects Fund is its share of 
the 1976 Sales Tax. However, it can receive substantial revenues from time to time from state, federal, and 
private sources to fund specific capital projects. Such revenues are substantially the same in Fiscal 2009 
compared to tiie prior year. The reduction In Transfer from Sales Tax is due to payment of additional debt 
incurred by a new bond issue referenced in the next fund discussed. 

Expenditures for Fiscal 2009 are $2.4 million above the previous year. Expenditures can vary greatiy over 
two consecutive years in a capital projects fund depending on how farabng individual large projects are. 
Once a project is designed and construction begins, funds can be expended in a relatively short time. 
Significant progress was achieved in multiple projects in Fiscal 2009, including Extension of Versailles 
Boulevard and Southern Heights Drainage Improvements. 

Overall fund balance decreased $3.3 million in 2009. 

General Capital Projects 2008 Sales Tax Bonds Fund and General Capital Projects 2008 Limited 
Tax Bond Fund 

These 2 funds are new in Fiscal 2009. They represent the proceeds of 2 bond issues done by the City in 
the amount of $25 million and $15 million respectively. Bonds issued for capital projects are often 
temporary, meaning they exist only until the proceeds are spent. These had no significant revenue in 
Fiscal 2009 as is often the case, and being relatively eariy in their life cycle, had combined expenditures of 
$1.7 million. The expenditures amount to about 4% of the proceeds and include the previously mentioned 
Extension of Versailles Boulevard. These funds will be reported as major funds of the City until the 
proceeds are sufficientiy expended to make them too small for reporting as major. 

Utilities System Fund 

The Utilities System Fund is the largest of the City's proprietary funds, dwarfing the Sanitation Fund, 
Municipal Transit Fund, Zoo Fund and Golf Course Fund. Revenues in the Utilities System are based 
primarily on the sales of electricity, water, natural gas, and wastewater service to customers. These 
revenues, charges for services, are up $12.4 million in 2009 compared to the prior year. This is almost 
entirely due to fuel cost recovery. The City does not benefit from fuel cost because that is simply the 
passing on of costs incurred by the City to its customers, but tiie incuning and subsequent recovery of these 

See Independent Auditor's Report 11 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

costs can cause considerable fluctuations in the revenue and expense ofthe System. Electric and Gas fuel 
recovery accounts are up a combined $12.4 million in Fiscal 2009 compared to 2008 due to the City making 
a substantial recovery of fuel cost in the current year. The actual sales of electricity, water, gas, and 
wastewater net out to relatively flat compared to the prior year. An unusual revenue increase is found in 
Federal & State Grants which are up by $1.7 million compared to the prior year. This is FEMA 
reimbursements for the Utilities System Fund relating to Hum'cane Gustav. 

Operating expenses are up $12.1 million in Fiscal 2009 compared to the previousyear. The biggest factor 
here is the expense side of fuel cost, up $8.3 million compared to prior year. Supplies and Maintenance 
Expenses are up for a combined $3.3 million accounting for the majority of the remaining increase. This 
was due in part to responses by the departments in the Utility Division to Hurricane Gustav. Transfers Out 
are up $1.4 million over the prior year. 

The results of the above were net income to the Utilities System Fund of $1.3 million for Fiscal 2009. This is 
reflected as an increase in total net assets. 

The following charts show the breakdown of revenues and expenses of the Utilities System Fund for Fiscal 
2009: 

Utilities System Revenues FY 2009 

s Charges for sales and servces 

• Other 

D ln\estment re\<enue 

D Federal and state grants 

• Gain (Loss) on sale of assets 

H Capital Contributions 

• Transfers in 

See Independent Auditor's Report 12 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

Utilities System Expenses FY 2009 

^...ii^^lllHI^ 
^ • ^ ^ M M M B | | M 

^^^HH^HH^^P ^^^t^^^^K^^^ 

s Electricity and natural gas 
purchased for resale 

• Employee Costs 

n Contracted services 

D Supplies 

• Vehicle expenses 

H insurance 

• unities 

S Repairs and maintenance 

• Depreciation 

• Interest on Debt 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

Governmental Funds 

The City had a net increase of $14.1 million in capital assets this year in govemmental activities. These 
capital assets wouW include vehicles, equipment, as well as infrastructure, net of depreciation. 

Business Type Funds 

The Business-type funds showed a net increase of about $5.5 million in capital assets this year. These 
would include vehicles and equipment as well as infrastmcture assets. Infrastixicture in the Utilities System 
consists of electrical substations, gas mains, wastewater lift stations, water tanks and other assets that 
enable the System to deliver sendee to its customers. These assets are listed net of depreciation. 
Depreciation is deducted from original cost to indicate the degree that the assets are "used up". Further 
infonmation on Fixed Assets and Depreciation can be found in Note 6 of the financial statements. 

See Independent Auditor's Report 13 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 

Govemmental 

2008 2009 

Business 

2008 2009 

Land 

Constmction in Progress 

Buildings 

Fumiture & Fixtures 

Equipment 

Vehicles 

Infrastnjcture 

10.786,505 

18,380,266 

65,829,779 

108,493 

3,409.202 

3,287,363 

44.895,249 

14,056,677 

20,241,016 

63,522.749 

109,727 

3,272,490 

3,767,692 

55,802,525 

2,660,646 

8,512,569 

3,239.219 

703,705 

4,571.205 

94,453.825 

2,743,614 

13.944,091 

3,120,329 

620,667 

4,408,676 

94,756,058 

Net Capital Assets 146,696,857 160,772,876 114,141,169 119,593.435 

In govemmental activities, we see that Land increased neariy $3.3 million in 2009. Among tiie ti^nsactions 
reflected here is the City's purchase of Dominique's Stock Barn for economic purposes and developer's 
donations of land in tiie Lake's District Subdivision. Construction in Progress increased roughly $1.9 million 
on wori< continues on various projects including the Extension of Versailles Boutevand. Vehicles increased 
about $.5 million attributable in part due to the acquisition of a Rescue Vehicle by tiie Police Department. 
Buildings are down $2.3 million primarily reflecting depreciation as there were no significant additions or 
retirements of buildings. Infrastructure increased approximately $11.0 million as a result of developer 
donations from the Lake's District and the completion of projects such as the paving of Heyman Lane from 
Coliseum Boulevard to Castie Road. 

In business activities, Construction in Progress is up by $5.4 million due to continuing projects such as the 
Highway 28 West Pump Station and Sewer Improvements. 

Debt Administration 

Governmental Funds 

As previously mentioned, the City had 2 new bond issues in Fiscal 2009. The first being the 2008 Sales 
Tax Bonds for $25 million, and the second being the 2008 Limited Tax Bondsfbr$15 milfion. These account 
for tiie substantial increase of over $37 million in govemmental debt. The offset reflects scheduled 
payments on the principal of both the new and existing debt 

Enterprise Funds 

The City issued no new debt in tiie Utilities System during 2009. The changes in debt taalance merely reflect 
payments made on the principal. For fijrther infonnation on debt, please see Note 10 to the financial 
statements. 

See independent Auditor's Report 14 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

Bonded Long-Term Debt 

Govemmental Business 

2008 2009 2008 2009 

Sales Tax Revenue 

Bonds 13.715,000 38.135.000 

Ad Valorem Tax Bonds 4.260,000 3.805,000 

Limited Tax Bonds - 14,345,000 
Certificates of 
Indebtedness 15,200.000 14,270,000 950,000 800.000 

Utility Revenue Bonds 41,345,000 37,060,000 

Total Outstanding Debt 33.175,000 70.555,000 42.295.000 37.860.000 

Future Outlook 

Economic conditions deteriorated during Fiscal 2009. This will adversely affect tiie City in a multitude of 
ways. Sales taxes accounted for 66% of General Fund Revenue sources in 2009. These taxes are very 
elastic, meaning tfiey rise and fall quickly with changes in the economy. Typically, economic downtijms as 
we are seeing cause rapid decreases In Sales tax collections in State and local govemment as people have 
less to spend. Sales taxes are expected to remain flat In the near future at best, with the distinct possibility 
of a decrease. Falling eamings in investments also translate to less interest revenue in all of the City's 
funds, and can meanlesseamingsforthepensionsystems that the City contributes to on the behalf of its 
employees. Reduced earnings for the pension systems could raise tiie City's contiibution rate to these 
systems. For example, contributions to the City Employee Pension System will rise from 23.55% of payroll 
for Fiscal 2010 to 28.94% of payroll for Fiscal 2011. Health care rates continue to rise fortiie City as well as 
most other employers, leading the City to the unpleasant option of either absortDing the additional cost or 
passing it on tiie employees. The General Fund by it's nature is very labor intensive with salaries and 
fringes amounting to 56% of total expenditures for Fiscal 2009. Any increases in these costs could become 
substantial to the General Fund. 

In business type activities, the Utilities System Fund shows a net income in Fiscal 2009 as opposed to a 
slight loss in tiie prior year. As noted previously, this is largely due to tiie "swings" in timing ofthe fuel cost 
expense and the subsequent recovery. The fuel cost revenue was up $12.4 million while the expense was 
up $8.3 million. While this difference is favorable in 2009 and should break even in the long njn, it can 
wreak havoc with the Utilities System Fund's profitability in the short run due to the proportional size of fuel 
cost. The combined fuel cost for electricity and gas amounted to 59.6% of expenses and transfers out for 
Fiscal 2009. 

See Independent Auditor's Report 15 



City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Year ended April 30, 2009 

Contacting the Finance Division of the City 

This report is intended as a brief oven/iew ofthe City's finandal condition. Any questions should be directed 
to tiie Director of Finance. PO Box 71, Alexandria, LA 71301. 

David L. Cmtchfield, CPA 
Director of Finance 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

See Independent Auditor's Report 16 
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City of Alexandria 
Alexandria, Louisiana 

statement of Net Assets 
April 30, 2009 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Equity in pooled cash and Investments 
Receivables 
Intemal balances 
Inventories 
Restricted equity in pooled cash and investments 
Prepaid expenses/other assets 
Deferred bond issue costs 
Capital assets, net of depredation 

Nondepredable 
Land and improvements 
Cuitsliuction In progress 
Infrastructure In progress 

Depreciable 
Infrastructure 
Other capital assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Bank ovendraft 
Equity in pooled cash overdraft 
Accounts and contracts payable 
Accrued interest 
Salaries payable 
Long-tenn liabilities 

Due within one year 
Bonds, and other 
Compensated absences 
Claims and judgments 

Due in more than one year 
Bonds, and other 
Customer guaranteed deposits 
Compensated absences 
Post employment benefit obligation 
Claims and judgments 

Total Uabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested In capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 

Capital projects 
Debt service 
Capita) additions and contingencies 
Community and economic development 
Riverfront Center operations 

Unrestrided 
Total Net Assets 

1 

Govemmenta l 

Activi t ies 

$ 4.959.107 
4,184,196 

76.891,579 
5.644.441 
6.344.730 

230,424 
-

113,180 
-

14,056.677 
1,777,472 

18.463,544 

55,802,525 
70,672,657 

259,140,532 

412,582 
-

3,248,292 
860,094 

1,143,483 

4,200,000 
524,859 

2.572,625 

66.345.000 
-

2.974.203 
382.799 

2.559.285 
85.243,222 

140,874.392 

25.723,454 
5.155.316 

-
759,517 
714,951 
669.680 

$ 173,897,310 

=*rimary Govemment 

Business-Type 

Activi t ies 

$ 4,784,583 $ 
-

2,099,716 
16,286,221 
(6,344,730) 
3,248,609 

19,677,819 
-

399,424 

2.743,614 
13,944,091 

-

-
102.905,731 
159,745,178 

35,681 
2.516,453 
4,172,969 

822,122 
667,823 

2,500,000 
215,161 

-

34,995,300 
4,189,594 
1,217,247 

-
-

51,332,350 

87,256,379 

5,522.943 
1,061,225 
1.000,000 

-
-

13,572,281 
$ 108.412.828 $ 

Total 

9,743.790 
4,184,196 

78,991.295 
21,930.662 

-
3.479.033 

19.677.819 
113.180 
399.424 

16,800.291 
15,721,563 
18.463,544 

55.802.525 
173,578.388 
418,885,710 

448.263 
2,516.453 
7,421.261 
1,702,216 
1,811,306 

6.700,000 
740,020 

2.572,625 

101,340,300 
4.189,594 
4,191,450 

382,799 
2,559,285 

136,575,572 

228.130,771 

31,246.397 
6,216,541 
1.000.000 

759.517 
714.951 

14.241,961 
282.310.138 

Exhibit A 

Component 

Units 

$ 1.021.859 
934.903 

-
47,785 

-
-
-

1,873 
-

-
-
-

-
131,283 

2,137,703 

-
-

15,875 
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

15,875 

131.283 

-
-
-
-
-

1.990.545 
$ 2,121.828 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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City of Alexandria 
Alexandria, Louisiana 

Reconciliation ofthe Govemmental Funds 
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets 

April 30, 2009 

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds 

Exhibit D 

$ 83,582.903 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are 
different because: 

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not current financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in this fund financial statement but are reported in 
the govemmental activrties of the Statement of Net Assets. 160.772.875 

Some liabilities, (such as compensated absences, and bonds payable ), are not due 
and payable in the cunrent period and are not included in the fund financial 
statement but are included in the govemmental activities ofthe Statement of Net 
Assets. 

Bonds 
Compensated absences 

(70.555,000) 
(3.499.062) 

Interest on long-term debt is accrued in the Statement of Net Assets, but not in the 
govemmental funds. (880,094) 

Certain receivables are reported in in the Statement of Net Assets but not In the 
governmental funds. 529.983 

Defen-ed revenue reported in govemmental funds but not in the Statement of Net 
Assets. 395.243 

The assets and liabilities of certain intemal service funds are not included in the fund 
finandal statement, but are included in the govemmental activities of the Statement 
of Net Assets. 

Net Assets of Govemmental Activities In the Statement of Net Assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 

3.540.462 

$ 173.887.310 
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City of Alexandria 
Alexandria, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of 
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Exhibit F 

Net Change in Fund Balances -Total Governmental Funds $ 29.973,597 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Govemmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures because 
such outlays use current financial resources. In contrast, the Statement of 
Activities reports only a portion of the outlay as expense. The outlay is 
allocated over the assets' estimated useful lives as depreciation expense for 
the period. 

Capital outlays included in governmental funds 12,859,119 
Depreciation included in the Statement of Acfivities (6,715,751) 

\ Govemmental funds reports proceeds from the disposition of capital assets as 
j revenue. The Statement of Activities reports the gain or loss from the 
i disposifion of capital assets (proceeds less basis). (52,266) 

Govemmental funds report repayment of bond principal as an expenditure. In 
contrast, the Statement of Activities treats such repayments as a reduction in 
long-tenn liabilities. 2,630,000 

Govemmental funds report proceeds of bonds issued as a revenue. In 
contrast, the Statement of Activities treats such proceeds as an increase in 
long-term liabilities. (40.000,000) 

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activities do not provide cument 
financial resources and these are not reported as revenues in governmental 
funds. Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require 
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. These timing differences are summarized 
below: 

FEMA grants 302,038 
Interest expense (336,449) 
Defen-ed revenue 50,806 
Compensated absences (514,968) 
Capital contributions from developers 7,988,866 

Intemal sen/ice funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain 
activities to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of certain intemal 
service funds is reported with governmental activities. 727,022 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 6,911,814 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of tfie financial statements. 
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City of Alexandria 

Alexandria, Louis iana 

Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 

Apr i l 30, 2009 

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Equity in pooled cash and investments 
Receivables (net of allowances 

for uncdlectibie) 
Due from other funds 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
prepaid expenses/other assets 

Total Ciirrent Assets 

Non-Cunrenl assets 
Restricted equity in pooled cash and irtvestnnents 
Capital assets 

Land and Improvements 
Construction In progress 
Property, plant and equipnient 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Deferred bond Issue costs 

Total Non-Current Assets 
TrtaJ Assets 

Utnit les System 

$ 4,752,898 

13,434.019 
244.782 

1,655.641 
3,248.609 

23,335.949 

19,677.819 

1,698.084 
13,505,020 

215.506.098 
(125,696,251) 

399.424 
125,090.194 

Enterprise Funds 

Other 

Enterpr ise 
Funds 

J 37,168 
2.099,716 

276.138 
342,351 
920,423 

3.675,796 

-

1.045,530 
439,071 

22.250,602 
(9.154,719) 

14.580,484 
16.256,280 

Total 

$ 4.790.066 
2.099.716 

13.710.157 
587.133 

2.576.064 
3.248,609 

27,011,745 

19,677,819 

2.743,614 
13.944.091 

237,756.700 
(134.850.970) 

399,424 
139.670.678 
16d.6fli.423 

Exhibit G 

Intemal Sen/ice 

Funds 

S 59.291 
8.839.446 

76.583 

113,180 
9,088,500 

-

19.742 
(9.724) 

10,018 
9,098.518 

Liabi l i t ies 
Cun-ent Uabililles 

Bank overdraft 
Equity in pooled cash overdraft 
Accounts payable 
Salaries payable 
Due to otfier funds 
Compensated absences 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Estimated liability for claims incurred 

Totals 
Liabilities payable from restncted assets 

Accounts and contracts payable 
Interest 
Revenue bonds 

Totals 

Non-Current Uabilities 
Compensated absences 
Certificates of Indebtedness 
Customer guaranteed deposits 
Estimated liability for claims incurred 
Post employment benefif obligation 
Revenue bonds 

Total Non-Current Uabilities 
Total Uabilities 

Net Assets 
Invested In capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for capital additons and contingencies 
Reslrcted for construction 
Unrestricted 

Total Not Assets 

-
2,516,454 
1.547,645 

522.128 
6.551.673 

160,462 
150.000 

-
11,468,362 

2.472,209 
822.122 

2,350,000 
5,644.331 

1,022,619 
650.000 

4.189,594 

-
-

34,345.300 
40.207,513 
57,320.206 

72.675.895 
1,061.225 
1.000.000 
5.522.943 

10,645,874 

S 91.105.937 

41,063 

-
153,116 
145.G93 
380,190 

34,699 

-
-

764.761 

-
-
. 
-

194,629 

-
-
-
-
-

194,629 
949,390 

14.580,484 

-
-
-

2,726.406 

$ 17,306.890 

41.063 
2,516.454 
1.700,761 

667,821 
6,931.863 

215,161 
150,000 

-
12.223.123 

2.472.209 
822,122 

2,350,000 
5.644,331 

1217.248 
650.000 

4,189.594 

-
-

34,345.300 
40,402.142 
58.269,596 

87.256,379 
1.061.225 
1,000.000 
5.522.943 

13,572.280 

-
-

15,968 
2.129 

15 

-
-

2.572,625 
2,590.737 

-
-
-
-

15.215 

-
-

2.559,285 
382,799 

-
2.957,299 
5.548,036 

10,018 

-
-
-

3.540.464 

S 108,412.827 $ 3.550.492 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finandal statements. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets for Enterprise Funds 

Reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets to Net Assets for 

Business-Type Activities Reported in the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Exhibit I 

Change in Net Assets - Enterprise Funds $ 2,480.146 

The Change in Net Assets reported for Business-Type Activities in the 
J Statement of Activities are different because: 

Change in Net Assets of Business-Type Activities $ 2,480,146 

The accompanying notes are and integral part of the financial statements. 
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City of Alexandria 
Alexandria, Louisiana 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Receqats from customers 
Intemal activity - receipts from ottier funds 
Other receipts 
Payments for personnel costs 
Payments to vendors and others 
Intemal activity - payments to otfier funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
Bank overdraft 
Operating grants and subsidies 
Transfers between funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related 
Financing Activities 

Capital contributions 
Interest received on construction funds 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 
Acquisition or construction of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 

Net Casii Provided (Used) by Capital 
and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activrties 
Net change in equity in pooled cash 

and investments 
Interest received on operating funds 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 

Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Caah and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Caah and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

Enterpr ise Funds 

Uti l i t ies 

System 

$ 111.803,608 
2,262.425 

85.040 
(14,379,562) 
(83,756.627) 

(2.777.255) 

13,237.629 

1,926.373 
93.734 

(10,149,536) 

(8,129.429) 

199.518 
14,466 

(9,215.391) 
(4,435,000) 
(1.480.967) 

(14,917,374) 

8,378,111 
194.836 

8,572,947 

(1,236.227) 

5,989.125 

$ 4.752,898 

Other 

Enterpr ise 

Funds 

S 5,239.338 $ 

(4.643,005) 
(2.720,312) 
(2.581.204) 

(4,705.183) 

37.827 
1.163,795 
5.073,493 

6.275.115 

484,764 

62,957 
(838,160) 

(290.439) 

(1,467.437) 
21.164 

(1,446.253) 

(166.760) 

203,928 

$ 37.168 3 

Tota l 

Enterpr ise 
Funds 

117.042,946 
2.262,425 

85,040 
(19.022,567) 
(86,476,939) 

(5,358,459) 

8.532.446 

1.964.200 
1.257,529 

(5.076.043) 

(1.854.314) 

484,764 
199,518 
77,423 

(10.053.551) 
(4.435,000) 
(1,480,967) 

(15,207.613) 

6,910.674 
216.020 

7.126,694 

(1.402,987) 

6,193,053 

4,790,066 

Exhibit J 

(Continued) 

Internal 

Service 

Funds 

$ 
7.318.839 
2,560.213 

(62.849) 
(10.284.351) 

(12.311) 

(480,459) 

26,740 

26,740 

-

-

179.147 
147.868 

327,015 

(126.704) 

185,995 

S 59.291 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finanda) statements. 
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City of Alexandria 
Alexandria, Louisiana 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Exhibit J 
(Concluded) 

Enterprise Funds 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Receivables 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventories 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 
Estimated liabtiity for claims incurred 
Post employment benefit obligation 
Compensated absences 
Customer guaranteed deposits 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by OperaUng Activities 

Utilities 
System 

Other Total 
Enterprise Enterprise 

Funds Funds 

Intemal 
Sen/Ice 
Funds 

$ 9,244,982 $ (5.523.883) $ 3,721,099 $ 553,735 

6.615,909 

(751,466) 

(351,789) 
(1.672,142) 

34.916 

32.179 

1,052.017 

(56.529) 
(146.888) 

_ 
(30,642) 

742 
-
-
-

7,667,926 

(807.995) 
(146,888) 

(351,789) 
(1.702.784) 

35,658 
-
-

32,179 

3,948 

333.868 
-

-
(51,799) 

266 
(1.180,456) 
(140,424) 

403 
85,040 85,040 

$ 13.237.629 $ (4.705,183) $ 8.532,446 $ (480.459) 

Additional required disclosure: 
In the Utiities System Enterprise Fund, noncapital financing activities consisted of capita! contributions from 
developers of $1,549,537. There were no material noncash operating or noncapital fir^ncing activites in the 
Utilities System Enterpirse Fund. 

There were no material noncash operating, noncapital financing, or capital and related financing activities in 
the other entriprise funds or the intemal service funds. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the rinancial statements. 
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City of Alexandria 
Alexandria, Louisiana 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 

April 30, 2009 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 

Interest and dividends 
Investments, at fair value 

Corporate bonds 
Corporate stocks 
U.S. Govemment agency notes 
Zero coupon treasury receipts 
GNMA notes 
Certificate of deposit 

Total Investments 

Capital assets 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment-net 

Total Capital Assets 
Total Assets 

Crty 
Employees' 
Retirement 

System 
(12/31/08) 

$ 5.030,090 

682.135 

15,688,848 
41.735.751 

8.089,631 
3.420.995 

48,232 
-

68.983.457 

1,979 
1,979 

74,697.661 

Pension Trust Funds 

Firemen's 
Pension and 
Relief Fund 

$ 6.373 $ 

-

_ 
-
-
-
-

93.556 
93.556 

. 

-
99,929 

Exhibit K 

Total 

5,036,463 

682,135 

15.688,848 
41.735,751 

8.089,631 
3.420,995 

48.232 
93.556 

69.077.013 

1,979 
1,979 

74.797,590 

570 
570 

Liabilities 
Payroll taxes withheld 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 74.697,091 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 

570 
570 

99,929 $ 74.797,020 
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City of Alexandria 
Alexandria, Louisiana 

Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Additions 
Contributions 

Employer 
Plan members 

Total Contributions 

Investment eamings 
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments 
Interest 
Dividends 

Total Investment Earnings 
Total Additicjns 

Deductions 
Plan benefits 
DROP benefits 
Refunds/transfers of contributions 
Administrative 

Total Deductions 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 

Net Assets End of Year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

City 

Employees' 

Retirement 

System 

(12/31/08) 

$ 5.518,590 
2.283,354 
7,801,944 

(20.181,988) 
1,982,050 
1,523,904 

(16,676,034) 
(8,874,090) 

6.032.791 
255,963 
253.049 
132,259 

6,674,062 

(15,548,152) 

90.245,243 

$ 74.697,091 

Pension Trust Funds 

Firemen's 

Pension and 

Relief Fund 

$ 25.000 $ 

25.000 

1,964 

1.964 
26.964 

21,124 

21,124 

5.840 

94,089 

$ 99,929 $ 

Exhibi t L 

Total 

5.543.590 
2.283,354 
7,826.944 

(20,181,988) 
1.984,014 
1.523.904 

(16,674.070) 
(8,647,126) 

6.053,915 
255,963 
253.049 
132,259 

6.695,186 

(15,542,312) 

90.339,332 

74,797,020 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
April 30, 2009 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Organization And Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Alexandria, Louisiana (City) is governed under the provisions ofthe Home Rule Charter 
adopted June 7,1977. The City operates under a Mayor- City Council form of govemment. 

The accompanying financial statements of the City have been prepared in confomiity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
govemmental units. The Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing govemmental accounting and financial reporting principles. GAAP 
includes all relevant GASB pronouncements. In the govemment-wide financial statements and the fund 
financial statements for the proprietary funds, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30,1989, 
have been applied unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in 
which case GASB prevails. 

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant ofthe City's accounting policies 
are described below. 

A. The Financial Reporting Entity 

As mentioned above, the City of Alexandria is govemed under the provisions of the Home Rule 
Charter and operates under a Mayor - City Council form of govemment. As required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements present the City of 
Alexandria and its component units. 

Blended Component Units. The Youth Baseball Recreation Board was authorized by the City 
Council and is govemed by a four member board made up of three representatives from the various 
baseball leagues and one member appointed by the City. The Youth Recreation Fund is reported as if it 
were part ofthe primary govemment because its sole purpose is to operate and maintain the Ciit/s baseball 
complex. The City provides a subsidy to the Board, primarily to finance the operations of the complex. 

Discretely Presented Component Units. The component unit columns in the govemment-wide 
statements of net assets and statement of activities include the financial data of the City's other component 
units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. 
The City Marshal and the City Judge are elected by the voters of the City of Alexandria. The financial 
statements of each of these entities are included as of their respective fiscal years ended September 30, 
2008. 

1. The Alexandria City Marshal is responsible for enforcing judgments of city court, maintaining 
order within the city court, and collection of city court fines. 

2. The Alexandria City Court is responsible for hearing court cases involving violations of city 
laws and ordinances and for rendering judgments thereon. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
April 30, 2009 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Complete financial statements for each of the two discretely presented component units can be 
obtained from their respective administrative offices: 

Administrative Offices: 

Alexandria City Marshal Alexandria City Court 
515 Washington Street 515 Washington Street 
Alexandria, Louisiana Alexandria, Louisiana 

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The accounting system is organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is defined as a 
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which are segregated for the purpose of 
canning on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, 
restrictions or limitations. 

The Cft/s funds are grouped into two broad fund categories and six generic fund types for financial 
statement presentation purposes. Governmental funds include the general, special revenue, debt service 
and capital projects. Proprietary funds include enterprise funds and intemal service funds. The City has 
two pension trust funds. 

Govemment-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The govemment-wide financial statements, "Statement of Net Assets" and "Statement of Activities", 
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary govemment. Govemment activities, 
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which primarily rely on fees and charges for support. Intemal service fund activity is 
eliminated to avoid "doubling up" revenues and expenses. Pension trust funds are excluded from the 
government-wide financial statements. 

The govemment-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accnjal basis of accounting. This is the same approach used in the preparation ofthe proprietary 
fund financial statements but differs from the manner in which govemmental fund financial statements are 
prepared. Therefore, govemmental fund financial statements include reconciliations with brief explanations 
to better identify the relationship between the govemment-wide statements and the statements for 
govemmental funds. The primary effect of intemal activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide 
financial statements. 

The govemment-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between expenses (both direct 
and indirect) and program revenues for each segment ofthe business type activities ofthe City and foreach 
govemmental program. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program 
or department and are therefore cleariy identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expenses are not 
allocated to governmental activities functions in the Statement of Activities but are allocated to business-
type functions. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients if goods or 
services are offered by the program, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues not classified as program revenue 
are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and expenses identifies the 
extent to which each program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of 
the City. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
April 30, 2009 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset are either externally 
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contiibutors, or laws or regulations of 
other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net 
assets restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital 
project funds with their respective net asset use. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of govemmental and 
enterprise fund finandal statements is on major funds rather than reporting by fund type. Each major fund 
is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The 
intemal service funds are presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements. 
Therefore, separate financial statements are provided for govemmental funds, propriety funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the govemment-wide financial statements. 

Govemmental Funds 

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the 
cun-ent financial resources measurement focus. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the 
accounting period in which they become measurable and available. Expenditures are recognized in the 
accounting period in which the fund liability is incun'ed, if measurable. 

The major governmental funds are: 

• General Fund - This is the City's primary operating fund. This fund accounts for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

• Special Revenue - City Sales Tax Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds ofthe 1976 one-
percent (1 %), the 2008 one-percent (1 %) city sales and use tax, and the 2005 one-half percent 
(72%) city sales and use tax. 

• General Capital Projects Fund - This ftjnd accounts for various capital projects. Funding is 
provided by intergovemmental grants and transfers of funds designated for capital 
improvements from the City Sales Tax Fund. 

• General Capital Projects '08 Limited Tax Bonds Fund - This fund accounts proceeds from the sale 
of $15,000,000 Limited Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 and subsequent expenditure of the 
funds. 

• General Capital Projects '08 Sales Tax Bonds Fund - This fund accounts proceeds from tiie sale of 
$25,000,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 and subsequent expenditure ofthe funds. 

Revenue Reirognition 

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accaial basis, the fallowing 
revenue sources are deemed to be measurable and available (i.e., collectible with the current period or 
within 60 days after year end and available to pay obligations in the current period). This includes property 
taxes, franchise taxes, sales taxes, grants, interest revenue, and charges for services. Fines, permits, and 
license revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in 
cash. Reimbursements due for federally and state funded projects are accnjed as revenue at the time the 
expenditures are made, or when received in advance, deferred until expenditures are made. 
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Expenditure Recognition 

The measurement focus on govemmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial 
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded when 
the related fund liability is incurred. However, principal and interest on general long-tenn debt, which has 
not matured, are recognized when paid. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not 
recognized in the govemmental funds. 

Proprietary Funds 

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds account 
for operations that are primarily financed by user charges. The economic resource focus concerns 
detemnining costs as a means of maintaining the capital investment and management control. Revenues 
are recognized when eamed and expenses when incurred. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are 
recorded In proprietary funds. Unbilled service receivables are recorded at each year-end. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues ofthe 
City's enterprise funds and intemal service funds include charges to customers for sales and services, 
transit fees, and employer and employee insurance premiums. All revenues not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and intemal service funds 
include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses, benefits paid and depreciation on capital 
assets. 

The major proprietary fund of the City is the Utilities System Fund, which accounts for electricity, 
natural gas, water and wastewater sen/ices provided to residents ofthe City and general sumDunding areas. 

The City maintains three intemal service funds as follows: 

• Risk Management Fund is used to account for the provision of various insurance coverage to the 
otherfunds ofthe City through incorporation ofselfinsurance and premiums paid for third party 
coverage for certain stop toss levels. 

• Employee Benefits Insurance Fund is used to account for the provision of hospitalization/health 
insurance to employees ofthe City. A defined amount is self insured and provision is made for 
excess coverage through premiums paid to a third party. In addition, certain life insurance is 
provided for employees through premiums paid to a third party insurance carrier. 

• Unemployment Benefits Fund is used to account for the provision of unemployment benefits to the 
other funds of the City through self-insurance coverage. 
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Fiduciary Funds 

The City currently has two pension tmst fiduciary funds as follows: 

• City Employees' Retirement System Fund is used to accumulate resources for retirement benefits 
for City employees covered under the plan. 

• Firemen's Pension And Relief Fund is used to account for benefits paid to members of this plan. 
The City is required to conti"ibute an amount sufficient to meet any deficit of the Fund without 
regard for reserve requirements accming on an actuarial basis. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, includir>g other 
govemments, or on behalf of other funds within the City. The City maintains the above pension tmst funds 
to account for the City's employee pension funds. Tmst funds are used to account for assets held by the 
govemment in a tmstee capacity. 

The accmal basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and pension tmst funds. Under 
this method, revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are 
incurred. 

C. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

Annual appropriated operating budgets of proposed expenditijres and the means of financing them 
are adopted for the general, special revenue, and debt service funds. Budgeted amounts are as originally 
adopted, eras amended from time to time by the Council. Budgets are adopted consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Budgets are adopted on a line item basis. Administrative amendments can be made on a 
departmental basis between line item accounts only. Interdepartmental amendments, interfund 
amendments, and additional appropriations from one fund to another are subject to (Council approval. The 
overall level of contiDi is on an interdepartmental basis. 

Annual operating budget appropriations expire at the close of the fiscal year to the extent not 
expended. 

D. Encumbrances 

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase onjers, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve tiiat portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed by the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds. Encumbrances at 
year end, if material, are reported as reservattons of fund balances. 
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E. Cash and Cash Equivalents; Investments 

Cash - Cash includes amounts on hand and in demand deposits. Fortiie purpose ofthe statement 
of cash flows, management considers all highly liquid investments, excluding restricted assets, with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Investments - Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which an 
investment could be exchanged in a cun*ent transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or 
liquidation sale. Certificates of deposit classified as investments are valued at cost, which equals fair value. 
U.S. Treasury Notes are valued based on quoted maricet prices. Corporate bonds are valued based on 
yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings. Securities traded on 
national securities exchanges are valued at tiie last reported sales price on tiie last business day ofthe plan 
year. Investments traded in the over-tiie-counter market are valued at the average of the last reported bid 
and asked prices. Mortgages have been valued on the basis of tiieirfuture principal and interest payments 
discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar investments. 

I 
j F. Intemal Balances (Due from/to Other Funds) 
,1 
! During the course of operations, numerous ti^nsactions occur between individual funds for goods 
j provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as internal balances on the 
] statement of net assets and as due from/to other funds in the fund financial statements. 

I Amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and payables are 
1 eliminated in the govemment-wide govemmental and business-type activities columns ofthe statement of 
! net assets, except for the net residual amounts due between govemmental and business-type activities, 
i which are presented as intemal balances. 

G. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market, with the exception of centi-al 
warehouse inventory and fuel, which are valued at average cost Inventories are accounted for in tiie funds 
using the consumption method, whereby expenditures are recognized as inventory is used. 

H. Restricted Assets 

Certain Enterprise Fund assets are classified as restricted assets t>ecause their use is restricted to 
certain activities by law or bond covenants. "Revenue Bond Current Debt Service accounts" are used to 
report resources accumulated for May 1^ maturities of revenue bonds principal and interest. "Customers' 
Deposit accounts" are used to account for funds received from customers for utilities deposits. "Revenue 
Bond Reserve accounts" are used to report resources set aside for potential future deficiencies in the 
Revenue Bond Current Debt Service accounts. "Revenue Bond Capital Additions and Contingencies 
accounts" are used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies or to fund asset 
renewals and replacements. "Special Projects accounts" are funds restricted by Council action for certain 
designated projects. "Utilities Capital Projects accounts" are used to account for funds set aside for capital 
additions, renewals, and replacements. 
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1. Capital Assets and Depreciation 

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are 
detennined by its measurement focus. General capital assets are long-lived assets ofthe City as a whole. 
When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditijres in the govemmental funds. 

In the Govemment-Wide Financial Statements, capital assets, including general capital assets are 
capitalized and depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Public domain 
("infrastmcture") capital assets consisting of roads, bridges, curiDS and gutters, streets and sidewalks, 
drainage systems, and lighting systems are capitalized. The valuation basis for capital assets is historical 
cost, or when historical cost is not available, estimated historical cost Donated capital assets are valued at 
estimated fair value on date of donation. The minimum capitalization threshold is as follows: 

Land All costs 
Buildings and building improvements Greater tiian $ 50,000 
Machinery and equipment Greater than $ 5,000 
Fumiture and fixtijres Greater tiian $ 5,000 
Vehicles Greater tiian $ 5,000 
Infrastmcture Greater than $250,000 

Capital assets in the proprietary funds are capitalized in the fund in which they are utilized. The 
valuation basis for proprietary fund capital assets are tiie same as those used for general capital assets. 
Donated assets are capitalized at estimated fair maricet value on the date donated. 

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets acquired with tax-exempt debt The amount of 
interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from tiie date of tiie borrowing 
until completion of the project with interest eamed on invested proceeds over the same period. Interest 
capitalized during the current period totaled $244,855. 

J . Bond Issuance Costs 

In governmental funds, bond issuance costs are recognized in the current period. Bond issuance 
costs for proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized over the tenn of the bonds using the 
bonds-outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond issuance costs for 
proprietary fund types are recorded as deferred charges. 

K. Compensated Absences 

Vested or accumulated leave is accmed in the period the liability is incurred. Compensated 
absences expected to be financed from govemmental funds are not reported in the Balance sheet of the 
Fund Financial Statements; however, compensated absences are reported in tiie statement of Net Assets in 
the Govemment-Wide Financial Statements. Vested or accumulated leave of proprietary funds is recorded 
as an expense and liability of those funds as tiie t)enefits accme to employees. No liability is recorded for 
compensated absences that relate to future services or that are contingent on a specific event tiiat is 
outside tiie control ofthe employer and employee. 
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L. Long-term Liabilities 

Long-tenm liabilities expected to be financed from governmental funds are not reported in the 
Balance Sheet for ttie Fund Financial Statements; however, such long-term obligations are reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets in the Govemment-Wide Financial Statements. Interest expense on long-term debt 
is recognized in tiie Government-Wide Financial Statements as the interest accmes, regardless of when it is 
due. Long-tenn liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in 
those funds. 

M. Supplemental Wages 

Certain employees of the police and fire departments receive supplemental wages from the State of 
Louisiana. These supplemental wages are recognized as intergovemmental revenue and public safety 
expenditures in tiie General Fund. 

] N. Interfund Transactions 
j 

I Quasi-external ti^nsactions, if any, are accounted for as revenues or expenditijres. Transactions 
j that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures, initially made from it that are properiy applicable 
I to another fund, are recorcled as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditijres in 
j the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers. 

O. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions tiiat affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents; Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments; and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents - govemmental and business-type activities 

At year-end, the City's deposits were covered by depository insurance or collateral held by ttie City or 
its agent in the City's name. 

Equity in pooled cash and investments - governmental and business-type activities 

I The City maintains separate cash and investment pools that are available for use by all funds not 
j required to maintain separate accounts in accordance vinth state law or bond indentures. At year-end, 
I equity in pooled cash and equivalents consisted of the following: 
i 
I Cash in interest-bearing demand deposits $ 48,991,295 
! Certificates of deposit with maturities of less than one year 30.000,000 

78,991,295 
Less individual funds pooled cash overdraft (448.263) 

$ 78.543.032 
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At year-end, the City's pooled cash and investments were covered by deposrtory insurance or collateral held 
by tiie City or its agent in tiie City's name. 

Investments - governmental and business-type activities 

The City may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or time certificates of deposit of any 
bank domiciled or having a branch office in the State of Louisiana, investments as stipulated in state law, or 
any otiier federally insured investment At year-end, the City's investments in governmental and business-
type activities consisted of certificates of deposit with maturities of less than one year. These investments 
were covered by depository insurance or collateral held by the City or its agent in tiie City's name. 

Cash and equivalents - employee retirement plans 

At year-end, the City's deposits were covered by deposrtory insurance or collateral held by the City or 
its agent in the City's name. 

Investments - employee retirement plans 

At year-end, the employee retirement plans had tiie following investments and matijrities: 

investment Maturities (In Years) 
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1 - 5 6 - 1 0 More than 10 

Corporate bonds $ 15,688,848 $ $ 68,000 $ 2,713,281 $ 12,907,567 
Zero coupon treasury 

receipts 3,420,995 1,009.016 2,411.979 
U. S. agencies obligations 8,089,631 8.089,631 

j GMNA mortgage notes 48.232 48 7.890 35.251 5,043 
i Total interest-bearing 27,247,706 $ 48 $ 1,084.906 $ 5.160,511 $21,002,241 
j Common stocks 37.752,397 
j Prefen-ed stocks 3,983,354 

Certificate of deposit 93.556 
$ 69.077,013 

Interest Rate Risk: The employee retirement plans do not have a formal investment policy that limits 
\ investment maturities as a means of managing their exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
; rates. 

I Credit Risk: The employee retirement plans may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or 
j time certificates of deposit of any bank domiciled or having a branch office in the State of Louisiana, 
j investinents as stipulated in state law, or any other federally insured investment In addition, tiie City of 
J Alexandria Employees' Retirement System may invest in corporate stocks and bonds. The City of 
j Alexandria Employees' Retirement System's investment polices limits its corporate debt investments to 
i bonds rated at least BBB by Standards and Poor's or Baa by Moody's Investors Sendee. 
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Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in ttie event 
of tiie failure of a depository financial institution, the govemment will not be able to recover its deposits. At 
year-end, the ehiployee retirement plans' certificates of deposit included in investments were covered by 
depository insurance or collateral held by the plans or the plans' agents in tiie plans' name. The custodial 
credit risk for investments is the risk tiiat, in tiie event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a 
govemment will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in tiie 
possession of an outside party. All other investments are held by the plan or its agents in the plan's name. 

3. Receivables 

Receivables as shown in the Fund Financial Statements, at April 30,2009, consist of the following; 

Receivables 
Taxes - sales 
Accounts 

Uncollected cycle billings 
Estimated unbilled services 
Interest 
Other 

Gross receivables 
Allowance for uncollectibles 

Net receivables 
Intergovemmental 

Federal 
State 
Local 

Total Intergovemmental 
i Total receivables 

Govemmental 

$ 

r 

$ 
$ 

Funds 

3,227.669 

15.152 
812,530 

4,055.351 
(42.976) 

4,012,375 

336,935 
371.821 
316.745 

1,025.501 
5,037.876 

Proprietary 

$ 

$ 

i_ 
$ 

Funds 

5,134.122 
9,789,992 

6.042 
14,930.156 
(1,220.000) 
13,710.156 

2,539,151 
36,914 

2.576.065 
16.286.221 

Intemal Service 

$ 

$ 

^ 
$ 

Funds 

76.563 
76.583 

76,583 

-
76,583 

Totals 

$ 3,227,669 

5,134.122 
9,789.992 

15.152 
895.155 

19,062.090 
(1,262.976 

$17,799,114 

2,876,086 
408.735 
316.745 

$ 3.601.566 
$21,400,680 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on properiy as of January 1 ̂  of each year. Taxes are 
levied by the City normally in October and are actually billed to the taxpayers in November. Billed taxes 
become delinquent on January 1 st of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in 
the year billed. The City bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by 
the tax assessor of Rapides Parish. 

For the year ended April 30.2009, taxes of 20.23 mills were levied on property with assessed values 
totaling $339,391,204 and were dedicated as follows: 

Streets and drainage 
Debt service 
General purpose 

11.25 mills 
2.15 mills 
6.83 mills 

Total taxes levied were $6,865,884 of which a balance of $-0- representing current taxes, (net of 
allowance for uncollectibles) remained uncollected at April 30. 2009. 
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Receivables arising from utility services provided to customers consist of uncollected billings 
rendered customers on monthly cycle billings and estimated services provided customers between billing 
cycles. The allowance for uncollectible accounts includes $1,220,489. which represents the projected 
uncollectible utility accounts at April 30, 2009. 

4. Due From/To Other Funds and Transfers 

Amounts due from and to otherfunds as reported in tfie fund financial statements, at April 30,2009, 
consist of the following: 

Receivable Fund 
General 
General 
General 
General 
General 
General 
General 
Community Development 
Community Development 
General Capital Projects 

Tota! Govemmental Funds 

Municipal Bus Line 
Sanitation 
Zoological Park 
Utilities System 
Utilities System 
Utilities System 
Utilities System 

Total Enterprise Funds 

Total Due From/To Other Funds 

Pavable Fund 
City Sales Tax 
Home Investment Partnership Program 
Youth Baseball 
Utilities System 
Sanitation 
Municipal Bus Line 
Risk Management 
Home Investment Partnership Program 
General 
City Sales Tax 

Utilities System 
Utilities System 
General 
Golf Course 
General Capital Projects 
Community Development Block Grant 
Sanitatron 

Amount 
$ 4.566,351 

1.796 
934 

6.211,835 
37,477 

216,962 
15 

476 
4.658 

658.443 
11.698.947 

182.858 
156,981 

2,513 
4,748 

119,000 
30 

121.003 
587,133 

$ 12.286,080 

The balances reflected in interfunds represent either routine charges for goods and services or 
permanent (non-loan) transfers from one fund to another. These balances are settied periodically. The 
amounts here represent activity since the last settlement. 
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Transfers, for the year ending April 30, 2009, shown in the fund financial statements were as follows: 

Transfers in Transfers out Amount 
General 
General 
General 
General 
General 
General 
General 
General Capital Projects 
General Capital Projects 
General Capital Projects 
General Capital Projects 
Home Inveshnent Ptiis Program 
Riverfront Center 
Debt Service 
Debt Service 
Debt Service 

Total Govemmental Funds 

Utilities System 
Utilities System 
Municipal Bus Line 
Municipal Bus Line 
Golf Course 
Zoological Park 
Sanitation 

Total Enterprise Funds 

Employee Benefits Insurance 
Employee Benefits Insurance 
Employee Benefits Insurance 
Employee Benefits Insurance 

Total Internal Service Funds 

Total Transfers 

City Sales Tax $ 
General Capital Projects 
Utilities System 
Sanitation 
Municipal Bus Line 
Zoological Park 
Golf Course 
City Sales Tax 
Utilities System 
General Capital Projects Tax Call 
General Capital Projects 1993 Drainage 
Hotel Economic Development 
General 
General Capital Projects '08 ST Bonds 
General Capital Projects Property Tax Call 
City Sales Tax 

Sanitation 
Municipal Bus Line 
Utilities System 
General Capital Projects 
General 
General 
General „ 

General 
Utilities System 
Sanitation 
Municipal Bus Line _ 

$ 

27,891,897 
310,000 

7,965,517 
761,534 
455,610 
281,442 

43.198 
4.107.485 

135.000 
13,200 

166.773 
17,714 

257,692 
1,978.750 
1.250.621 
2,447.656 

48.084,089 

164,991 
39.077 

2,304,099 
30,698 

343.573 
2,355.699 
1,939.710 
7,177.847 

16,499 
6,966 
1,108 

848 
25.421 

55,287.357 

The transfers are movements of money from one fund to another. These can be required by law 
(City Sales Tax transfers to other funds) or merely serve as a means to finance activities in the receiving 
fund (Utility transfers to General Fund and Transit Fund). As in the interfunds above, these are not loans, 
i.e., the receiving fund does not pay it back. 
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5. Restricted Assets 

At April 30,2009, restricted assets ofthe Utility System Enterprise Fund consist of equity in pooled 
cash and investments totaling $19,677,819 as follows: 

] Revenue bond cun^ent debt service $ 3,159,708 
I Customers' deposits . 4,189,594 
I Special projects 150,000 
j Revenue bond reserve 1,061,225 
1 Revenue bond capital additions and contingencies 1,000,000 

Utilities capital projects - unexpended bond funds 7,323,899 
Utilities capital projects - other 2,793.393 

$ 19,677,819 
6. Capital Assets and Depreciation 

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2009, was as follows: 

Govemmental Activities 
Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 

Land and land improvements 
Inftcistoicture in progress 

Total Capital Assets not 
Being Depreciated 

Otiier Capital Assets 
Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and fixtures 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total Other Capital Assets 
Acc^umulated Depreciation 

Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and fixtures 
Equipment 
Vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 
Ottier Capital Assets, Net 

Balance 
Mav 1,2008 

$ 10,786,505 ; 
18.380,266 

29.166,771 

90,090,472 
893.337 

12.700.837 
10.568.258 
71.544,569 

185,797,473 

(24,260,693) 
(784,844) 

(9.291,635) 
(7.280.895) 

(26.649.320) 
(68,267.387) 
117.530,086 

increases 

I 3.270.172 
9.720,944 

12,991.116 

6.500 
978.666 

1.626.017 
13,158.022 
15,769,205 

(2,307,030) 
(4.466) 

(1.071.753) 
(1,136,941) 
(2,250,746) 
(6.770,936) 
8,998,269 

Decreases 

$ 
(7,860.194) 

(7,860.194) 

-
(5,810) 

(433,708) 
(463,343) 

-
(902,861) 

-
5,010 

390.083 
454,596 

-
849,689 
(53,172) 

Balance 
Aoril 30. 2009 

$ 14,056,677 
20.241.016 

34,297,693 

90.090.472 
894,027 

13,245.795 
11,730,932 
84.702,591 

200,663.817 

(26.567,723) 
(784,300) 

(9,973.305) 
(7,963.240) 

(28,900,066) 
(74,188.634) 
126.475.183 

Net Capital Assets $146,696,857 $21,989,385 $(7,913,366) $160,772,876 
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Depreciation increases (expense) other than transfers in of $51,236 was charged to functions as 
follows: 

Govemmental Activities 
General govemment $ 1,620.553 
Public safety 1.559.026 
Public worths 3,532,423 
Community Development 3.749 

Total Depreciation Expense for Governmental Activities $ 6,715,751 

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Buildings and improvements 10 -40 years 
Fumitijre and fixtures 3-10 years 
Equipment 3-50 years 
Vehicles 3-10 years 
Infrastnjcture 25 - 40 years 

The City looks at individual projects in considering capitalizing infrastmcture. To be capitalized, the 
project cost must be $250,000 or greater. Donated assets, such as by developers, are subject to the 
tiireshold. Actual cost is used when available, estimated cost is used otherwise. 

Estimations of useful lives are as follows: 
Streets 
Drainage 
Traffic signals 

Business-Type Activities 
Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 

Land 
Constmctran in progress 

Total Capital Assets not 
Being Depreciated 

Otiier Capital Assets 
Plant and equipment 
Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles and buses 
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 

Total Otiier Capital Assets 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Plant and equipment 
Buildings and improvements 
Vehicles and buses 
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 

Total Accumulated Depreciation 
Otiier Capita! Assets, Net 

Balance 
Mav 1.2008 

$ 2.660,646 J 
8.512.569 

11,173.215 

212.561,965 
5,701,458 

11,214,530 
2,333.498 

231,811.451 

(118.108,140) 
(2,462,239) 
(6.643,325) 
(1,629,793) 

(128.843,497) 
102,967,954 

Increases 

82,968 
8.829,684 

8.912,652 

6,687,321 
-

953.176 
85,186 

7.725,683 

(6,325.907) 
(118,890) 

(1.058.053) 
(165.076) 

(7.667.926) 
57.757 

Decreases 

$ 
(3.398.162) 

(3.398,162) 

(1.063,721) 
-

(707,719) 
(8.992) 

(1.780,432) 

1.004,540 
-

650,067 
5,844 

1.660,451 
(119.981) 

40 years 
25 years 
25 years 

Balance 
April 30, 2009 

$ 2.743,614 
13.944.091 

16.687,705 

218.185,565 
5.701,458 

11.459,987 
2.409.692 

237.756,702 

(123.429.507) 
(2,581.129) 
(7,051,311) 
(1.789.025) 

(134.850.972) 
102,905.730 

Net Capital Assets $114,141,169 $ 8,970,409 $(3,518,143) $119,593,435 
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Depreciation was charged to functions as follows: 

Business-Type Activities 
Electricity 
Natijral gas 
Water 
Waste water 
Municipal bus line 
Sanitation 
Municipal zoo 
Municipal golf course 
Tota! Depreciation Expense for Business-Type Activities 

$ 

$ 

2,407,018 
1.364,402 
1.175.515 
1,668.974 

389.181 
233.760 
147.701 
281.375 

7,667,926 

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the follownng estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 
Fumiture and fixtures 
Plant and equipment 
Vehicles 

A summary of significant budgeted constmction or renovation projects 

Project Expended 
Authorization To Date 

Utilities System Enterprise Fund 
Electric $ 8,928.637 $ 3,786.545 
Gas 160.000 
Water 3,544.689 530,658 
Wastewater 23,810.267 11.565,071 
General and administi-ative 2,867.496 860.770 

$39,311,089 $16,793,044 

1 0 - 40 years 
3 -10 years 
3 - 50 years 
3 -10 years 

is presented below^ 

Commitment 

$1,095,454 
-

436.340 
1,661,177 

242.805 
$ 3.435.776 

Required 
Further 

Financing 

None 
None 
None 
None 
None 

Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to, and destî uction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natijral disasters. The City employs a Risk 
Management Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss. Under 
this program, the Risk Management Fund provides coverage up to tiie maximum amounts indicated in the 
following table. The City purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the 
Fund and for all ottier risks of loss. Settled claims did not exceed ttiis commercial coverage for the fiscal 
year ended April 30,2009. During a previous year, management of tiie City decided not to renew coverage 
for automobile liability. All claims are now handled by the City Attorney's office witii the City primarily liable 
for any and all claim settlements. 
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Loss Retained 

General liability/Law enforcement liability 
Workers' compensation 
Public officials and employees liability 
Property damage 

(*) $250,000,000 per occurrence with specified sub-limits 

Each 
Occurrence 
$500,000 
500.000 
500,000 
100.000 

In 
Aggregate 
2,000,000 
Statutory 

2,000,000 

r) 

All funds of tiie City participate in the program and make payments to tiie Risk Management Fund 
based upon actuarial estimates of tiie amounts needed to pay prior and current year claims. The claims 
liability of $4,856,285 as of April 30,2009, is based on tiie requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which 
requires that a liability for claims be reported if infomiation prior to the issuance of the financial statements 
indicates tiiat it is probable that a liability has been incurred at ttie date ofthe financial statements and tiie 
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The City has elected to recond the liability on tiie 
discounted basis. 

follows: 
Changes in the Fund's claims liability amount in ttie fiscal year ending April 30, 2009, were as 

Balance, beginning of the year 
Current year claims and changes in estimates 
Claims payments 
Balance, end of the year 

$ 5,461,000 
1,498,427 

(2.103.142) 
$ 4,856.285 

The City is a defendant in lawsuits, which are not covered by an insurance program, and is involved 
in ongoing disputes regarding certain class actions or potential class actions filed on behalf of past and 
present employees. The various disputes are primarily of employment or wage related matters. The City 
denies any liability or responsibility for wages or otiier claims and intends to contest ttie claim or claims 
vigorously and to not seek any out-of-court settlements. Legal counsel has advised that there is no specific 
estimate which can be made of the amount or range of the potential loss or exposure, if any, at this time. 

The City is a plaintiff in a lawsuit with CLECO regarcling the price paid for certain purchases of 
energy, for the Utilities System, from CLECO in previous years. In compliance with an order ofthe court, an 
independent audit ofthe records relating to those purchases was conducted. The parties entered into 
mediation regarding tiie matter and preliminary agreements were fomiulated. However, a final agreement 
has not been reached. The matter is set for trial on Febnjary 22,2010. Management and legal counsel for 
tiie City are unable to provide reasonable estimates of ttie amount of recovery, if any, and it is not practical 
to calculate such amounts under current known facts and conditions. Management does not anticipate any 
liability resulting from the lawsuit accruing to the City. 

8. Employee Benefits Insurance 

The City employs an Employee Benefits Insurance Fund (an intemal service fund) to account for and 
finance employee hospitalization/health insurance and certain employee life insurance. LJnderthis program, 
the Employee Benefits Insurance Fund nonmally provides coverage for a maximum of $50,000 per plan year 
for each covered employee's (and dependent's, if applicable) qualifying health claims. Ciommercial 
insurance is purchasecJ for health claims in excess of self-insured maximum of $50,000 for each covered 
employee's (and dependent's, if applicable) qualifying health claims. The Fund does not have a maximum 
aggregate retained loss. The Employee Benefits Insurance Fund also purchases certain employee life 
insurance from employee contributions. 
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Applicable funds ofthe City and covered employees participate in the program and make payments 
to the Employee Benefits Insurance Fund based on estimates of the amount needed to pay cun-ent year 
claims. The claims liability of $275,625 reported in the Fund at April 30, 2009, is based upon the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information 
prior to the issuance ofthe financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred 
at the date of ttie financial statements and the amount ofthe loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in 
the Fund's claims liability amount in the fiscal year ending April 30. 2009. were as follows: 

Balance, beginning of the year $ 851,366 
Current year claims and changes in estimates 6,166.807 
Claims payments (6.742,548) 
Balance, end of the year $ 275,625 

9. Unemployment Benefits 

The City employs an Unemployment Benefits Fund (an intemal service fund) to pay self-insured 
\ unemployment claims under state statutes. All claims are administered by the state unemployment office. 
\ Approved claims are paid by the state, which invoices the City for reimbursement. All funds of the City 
• participate in the program. 
i 

i During the year ended April 30.2009, no payments were paid to the Unemployment Benefits Fund. 
j Management believes tiiat sufficient investments are available in the Unemployment Benefits Fund to pay 

claims from investment eamings. Claims Incured as ofApril 30, 2009, are considered immaterial and are 
not included in this report. 

{ 10. Long-Term Liabilities 
1 

Govemmental activities long-term liabilities are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit 
i of the City. The City has incunred these liabilities to provide funds for tiie acquisition and construction of 
; major capital additions, to provide funds for major capital projects, and to provide funds in connection with 
1 the merger of the City's Police Pension and Relief Fund into the statewide Municipal Police Employees' 
I Retirement System and the City's Firemen Pension and Relief Fund into the statewide Rrefighters' 

Retirement System. In addition, the City's obligation relative to the govemmental funds' liability for 
compensated absences and extended risk management claims is reported as a govemmental activities 
long-term liability. 

The City has issued two types of revenue bonds. The first type is utility revenue bonds whereby the 
City pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. This long-term 
debt is reported in the business-type activities. The second type is sales tax revenue bonds whereby the 
City has pledged revenue from specifically dedicated sales tax collections to pay debt service and is 
reported as govemmental activities long-tenn liabilities. 
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A summary of long-term debt, as of April 30, 2009 

Govemmental activities 
General Obligation 

Sales tax revenue bonds 
2002 Issue 
2008 Series 

Ad valorem tax bonds -refunding 
Limited Tax bonds - series 2008 
Certificates of indebtedness 

Series 1998 A & B - refunding 
Series 1998 C - refunding 

Compensated absences 
Risk Management Claims 
Post employment benefit obligation 

Business-type activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Utilities System revenue bonds 
20O3 refunding 
2004 A capital additions 
2004 B refunding 

CeiLificates of indebtedness 
Series 2004 - capital additions 

Customer guaranteed deposits 
Compensated absences 

Totals 
Cun-ent portion 

Totals 

Maturity 
Dates 

2010-2024 
2010-2028 
2010-2016 
2010-2018 

2010-2014 
2010-2022 

2009-2014 
2009 - 2034 
2009-2021 

2009-2013 

Defen-ed loss on Revenue Bonds 2003 B refunding 
Totals 

follows: 

interest 
Rates 

2.50 - 5.00 
3.50 - 5.00 
2.00 - 3.75 
3.50-4.00 

4.65-6.00 
5.75-6.85 

2,50 - 3.625 
3.00 - 5.00 
3.00 - 5.00 

2.80-4.15 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 

4.765.000 
15.470.000 
16,825.000 

800.000 
4.189.594 
1.432.408 

43,482.002 
(2.715.161) 

$40,766,841 
(364.700) 

$40,402,141 

Govemmental 
Activities 

$13,135,000 
25.000.000 

3,805.000 
14,345.000 

1.635,000 
12,625,000 
3,499,062 
5,131.910 

382,799 

79.558,771 
(7.297.484) 

$72,261,287 

During the year ended April 30, 2009, the following changes occurred in govemmental activities 
long-tenn liabilities: 

Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt 
Sales tax bonds 
Ad valorem tax bonds 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Compensated absences - net 
Post employment benefit obligation - net 
Risk management claims - net 

Totals $ 42,994.683 $ 40.514,968 $(3,950,880) $79,558,771 

I 51 

Balance 
05/01/08 

$ 13,715,000 
4.260,000 

15,200.000 
2,984,094 

523,223 
6,312.366 

Additions 

$ 25,000,000 
15,000.000 

514.968 

Balance 
(Reductions) 04/30/09 

$ (580.000) $38,135,000 
(1,110,000) 18.150,000 

(940,000) 14,260,000 
3.499.062 

(140.424) 382.799 
(1.180.456) $ 5.131.910 
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A summary of long-term debt, 

Governmental activities 
General Obligation 

Sales tax revenue bonds 
2002 Issue 
2008 Series 

Ad valorem tax bonds -refunding 
Limited Tax bonds - series 2008 
Certificates of indebtedness 

Series 1998 A & B - refunding 
Series 1998 C - refunding 

Compensated absences 
Risk Management Claims 
Post employment benefit obligation 

Business-type activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Utilities System revenue bonds 
2003 refunding 
2004 A capital additions 
2004 B refunding 

Certificates of indebtedness 
Series 2004 - capital additions 

Customer guaranteed deposits 
Compensated absences 

Totals 
Current portion 

Totals 

as OfApril 30, 2009, follows: 

Maturity 
Dates 

2010-2024 
2010-2028 
2010^2016 
2010-2018 

2010-2014 
2010-2022 

2009-2014 
2009-2034 
2009-2021 

2009-2013 

Deferred loss on Revenue Bonds 2003 B refunding 
Totals 

Interest 
Rates 

2.50 - 5.00 
3.50 - 5.00 
2.00 - 3.75 
3.50 - 4.00 

4.65 - 6.00 
5.75 - 6.85 

2.50 - 3.625 
3.00-5.00 
3.00-5.00 

2.80-4.15 

Business-type 
Activities 

$ 

4,765,000 
15,470.000 
16,825,000 

800.000 
4.189.594 
1.432.408 

43.482.002 
(2.715,161) 

$40,766,841 
(364.700) 

$40,402,141 

Govemmental 
Activities 

$13,135,000 
25.000.000 

3,805,000 
14.345,000 

1.635,000 
12.625,000 
3,499.062 
5.131,910 

382,799 

79,558,771 
(7,297.484) 

$72,261,287 

During the year ended April 30, 2009. the following changes occurred in govemmental activities 
long-tenn liabilities: 

Govemmental Activities Long-Term Debt 
Sales tax bonds 
Ad valorem tax bonds 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Compensated absences - net 
Post employment benefit obligation - net 
Risk management claims - net 

Totals 

Balance 
05/01/08 

$ 13,715.000 
4,260,000 

15,200,000 
2.984.094 

523.223 
6.312.366 

$ 42.994,683 

Additions 

$ 25,000.000 
15,000.000 

514,968 

$ 40,514,968 

Balance 
(Reductions) 04/30/09 

$ (580,000) $38,135,000 
(1.110.000) 18.150.000 

(940.000) 14.260,000 
3,499,062 

(140.424) 382,799 
(1.180.456) $ 5.131.910 

$ (3,950,880) $79,558,771 
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Govemmental Activities Long-Tenn Debt 
Sales tax bonds 
Ad valorem tax bonds 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Compensated absences - net 
Post employment benefit obligation - net 
Risk management claims - net 

Totals 

Balance 
04/30/09 

38.135.000 
18,150,000 
14,260,000 
3,499.062 

382.799 
5,131.910 

Due within Due in more 
one year than one vear 

$ $36,740,000 
16,335,000 
13,270.000 
2,974,203 

382.799 
2.559.285 

$ 79.558,771 $ 7,297,484 $72,261,287 

1,395,000 
1,815,000 

990.000 
524,859 

2,572.625 

The annual requirements to amortize outstanding govemmental activities tong-term debt excluding 
compensated absences, post emptoyment benefit obligation, and risk management claims are as follows: 

Year ended April 30. 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2029 

Principal 
Pavments 
4,200,000 
4,390.000 
4,600,000 
4,820,000 
4,850.000 

22,955,000 
16,180,000 
8,550.000 

Interest 
Pavments Total 

$ 3,102.969 
2.934.694 
2,765,127 
2,584.203 
2,391,046 
8,684.239 
3,858.925 
1.100.972 

$ 7,302.969 
7.324.694 
7,365,127 
7.404,203 
7.241.046 

31,639.239 
20.038.925 

9.650,972 
$70,545,000 $27,422,175 $97,967,175 

During the year ended April 30.2009, the following changes occun'ed in business-type activities long-term 
[labilities: 

Balance 
05/01/08 Additions (Reductions) 

Balance 
04/30/09 

Business-Type Activities Long-Tenn Debt 
Revenue bonds 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Compensated absences - net 
Customer guaranteed deposits - net 

Totals 

$41,345,000 
950.000 

1,400.684 
4.104,554 

$ 

31,724 
85X)40 

$ (4.285.000) $37,060,000 
(150,000) 800.000 

1.432,408 
4.189.594 

$47,800,238 $ 116,764 $ (4.435,000) $43,482,002 

Business-Type Activities Long-Tenn Debt 

Balance 
04/30/09 

Due within 
one vear 

$43,482,002 $ 2,715,161 

Due in more 
than one vear 
$40,766,841 
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^ The annual requirements to amortize outstanding business-type activities long-term debt excluding 
i customer guaranteed deposits and compensated absences are as follows: 

Year ended April 30. 
I 2010 
•\ 2011 
i 2012 

2013 
2014 
2015-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 

11. Supplemental Pay 

Principal 
Pavments 

$ 2,500,000 
2,610.000 
2.715.000 
2,825,000 
2,920.000 
9.830.000 
6.330,000 
3,580,000 
4.550,000 

$37,860,000 

Interest 
Pavments 

$ 1,600.685 
1,496.128 
1,392.422 
1.294,101 
1.191.169 
4,546,708 
2,409,537 
1,498.913 

555,305 
$15,984,968 

Total 
$ 4.100,685 

4.106.128 
4,107.422 
4,119.101 
4.111.169 

14,376,708 
8,739.537 
5.078.913 
5.105,305 

$53,844,968 

j Certain employees meeting statutory qualifications in the fire and police departments receive 
j supplemental pay directiy from ttie State of Louisiana. This supplemental pay in the amount of $1.415,711 
i Is recognized as intergovemmental revenue in the General Fund and as expenditures in the following public 
j safety departments: 

Police $ 840,740 
Fire 574,971 

$ 1.415.711 

12. Enterprise Funds - Segment Information 

The City operates a utilities system consisting of an electric generation and distiibution system, a 
natural gas distribution system, a water production and distribution system, and a sewerage transmission 
and ti-eatment plant The City issued revenue bonds for capital improvements of tiie utilities system. These 
revenue bonds rely on revenues generated by Oie utilities system as a whole for repayment The following is 
a condensed summary of tiiis fund: 

Utilities 
Svstem 

Condensed Statement of Net Assets 
Assets 

Cun-ent assets 
Due from otherfunds $ 244,782 
Other current assets 23,091.167 

Noncurrent assets 
Restricted equity in pooled 

cash and investments 19,677,819 
Capital assets 105,012,951 
Ottier noncurrent assets 399.424 

Total Assets 148,426,143 
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Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Due to otherfunds 
Other current liabilities 

Liabilities payable fi-om restiicted assets 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 
Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 

Restiicted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net /^sets 

Utilities 
Svstem 

6.551.673 
4.916,689 
5,644,331 

40.207.513 
57.320.206 

72,675,895 
7;584,168 

10.845.874 
S 91.105.937 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
Operating revenues (operating revenues 

are pledged against revenue bonds) 

Operating expenses 
Depreciation 
Ottier 

Operating income (loss) 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Investment income 
Operating grants and contributions 
Disposition of assets 
Interest expense and fiscal charges 

Capital contributions 
Transfers in (out) 
Change in Net Assets 
Net Assets, beginning 
Net Assets, ending 

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 
Net cash provided (used) by 

Operating activities 
Nonc:apital financing activities 
Capital and related financing activities 
Investing activities 

Net increase 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 
Cash and cash equivalents, ending 

$114,817,499 

(6.615.909) 
(98.956.608) 

9,244,982 

394.354 
1.749.285 

14.466 
(1,569.573) 
1.549,537 

(10.207.514) 
1,175,537 

89.930.400 
S 91.105.937 

$13,237,629 
(8,129.429) 

(14.917.374) 
8.572.947 

$ (1.236,227) 
5.989.125 

$ 4.752,898 
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Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Due to other funds 
Other current liabilities 

Liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 
Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Assets 
Operating revenues (operating revenues 

are pledged against revenue bonds) 

Operating expenses 
Depreciation 
Ottier 

Operating income (loss) 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Investment income 
Operating grants and contributions 
Disposition of assets 
Interest expense and fiscal charges 

Capital contributions 
Transfers in (out) 
Change in Net Assets 
Net Assets, beginning 
Net Assets, ending 

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 
Net cash provided (used) by 

Operating activities 
Noncapital financing activities 
Capital and related financing activities 
Investing activities 

Net increase 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 
Cash and cash equivalents, ending 

Utilities 
Svstem 

6,551,673 
4.916,689 
5.644.331 

40.207.513 
57.320.206 

72.675,895 
7,584.168 

10.845.874 
$ 91^105^937 

$114,817,499 

(6,615.909) 
(98.956.608) 

9.244.982 

394.354 
1,749.285 

14.466 
(1,569.573) 
1,549,537 

(10.207.514) 
1,175,537 

89.930.400 
S 91.105,937 

$ 13,237,629 
(8.129.429) 

(14.917.374) 
8.572.947 

$ (1,236.227) 
5.989.125 

$ 4.752.898 
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Segment information for the Utilities System Enterprise Fund forthe fiscal year ended April 30.2009, 
foDows: 

Waste 
Total Electric Gas Water Water 

Operating revenues $114,817,499 $86,007,698 $17,737,524 $ 6.514,614 $ 4,557,663 
Operating expenses 

Depreciation (6,615,910) (2,407,018) (1.364,402) (1.175,515) (1,668,975) 
Ottier (98.956.607) (67.731.087) (17.789,318) (6,487,852) (6,948.350) 

Operating income (loss) $ 9,244,982 $15,869,593 $ (1,416,196) $ (1,148,753) $ (4,059.662) 

13. Dedication of Proceeds - Flow of Funds - City Sales and Use Tax 

Proceeds of the 1976 one percent (1%) City Sales and Use Tax are dedicated to the following 

purposes: 

a. One-half is to be used for maintenance and operating expenses ofthe City. 

b. The other one-half is to be used in the following order of priority: 
1. On or before the 20th day of each month, there shall be transferred to a Sales Tax Bond 

Sinking Account in the Debt Service Fund an amount equal to 1/6th ofthe interest falling 
due on the next interest payment date and 1/12th of the principal falling due on the next 
principal payment date of all sales tax bond issues outstanding. 

2. Any funds remaining after the above transfers will be considered surplus and may be 
used for constructing, acquiring, extending, and/or improving capital improvements for 
the City (including, but not limited to. majorthoroughfares and arterial sti-eets wfth related 
improvements, major drainage systems, a civic convention center complex, parks, and 
partcing facilities). 

Proceeds of the 2008 one-percent (1 %) City Sales and Use Tax are dedicated to fund General Fund 
operations including: 

a. No less than one-tiiird the tax collected is dedicated to fire, police, and General Fund 
classified employees' salaries. 

b. Replace General Fund revenues lost from Federal and State government funding cuts from 
previous years. 

c. Street repair; street cleaning; maintenance of city drainage systems; grass cutting; 
maintenance of paries and recreational facilities; police and fire services and programs; 
general building maintenance; demolition of condemned stmctures; and city planning. 

Proceeds of the 2005 one-half percent (YzVo) City Sales and Use Tax are dedicated to paying 
salaries and related benefits for police, fire and other City employees funded through the City's General 
Fund. 
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14. Flow of Funds - Restrictions on Use - Utilities System Enterprise Fund 

The utility revenue bonds were issued pursuant to bond ordinances, which provide substantially ttie 
following temis: 

The City, through its goveming authority, has covenanted to fix. establish, maintain and collect such 
rates, fees, rents or otfier charges forthe services and facilities of ttie Utilities System, and all parts ttiereof, 
and to revise the same from time to time whenever necessary, as will always provide revenues in each year 
sufficient to pay the necessary expenses of administering, operating, and maintaining the Utilities System in 
each year, 120% of ttie principal and interest maturing on the bonds or other obligations payable there from 
as the same shall become due and payable in each year, all reserves or sinking funds or other payments 
required for such year by the Bond Ordinance, and all other obligations or indebtedness payable out of the 
revenues of the Utilities System for such year, and that such rates, fees, rents or other charges shall not at 
any time be reduced so as to be insufficient to provide adequate revenues for such purposes. 

The City has further covenanted that all of said income and revenues eamed or derived ftx)m the 
operation of tiie Utilities System shall be deposited daily as ttie same may be collected in the Utilities 
System Fund heretofore established with tiie regulariy designated fiscal agent of ttie City pursuant to the 
Bond Resolutions; that said fund shall be maintained and administered in the following order of priority and 
for the following express purposes: 

(a) The payment of all reasonable expenses of administt-ation, operation, and maintenance of ttie 
Utilities System. 

(b) The maintenance of tiie Sinking Funds established pursuant to the bond resolutions sufficient 
in amount to pay promptiy and fully the principal of and the interest on the Bonds and any 
additional pari passu bonds issued hereafter in the manner provided by the bond ordinance, 
as they severally become due and payable, by transferring from ttie Utilities System Fund to 
the Sinking Funds established pursuant to the bond resolutions, monthly in advance on or 
before ttie 20th day of each month of each year, a sum equal to 1/6th ofthe interest falling due 
on the next interest payment date, and a sum equal to 1/12th of principal falling due on ttie 
next principal payment date, together with such additional proportionate sum as may be 
required to pay said principal and interest as the same respectively becomes due. The 
depository for the Sinking Funds shall transfer from said Sinking Funds to the paying agent 
bank or banks for all bonds payable from said Fund at least one day in advance of the date on 
which each payment of principal or interest falls due, funds fully sufficient to pay promptly the 
principal and interest so falling due on such date. 

(c) The maintenance of the Reserve Funds established pursuant to the bond resolutions by 
transfemng from tiie proceeds of ttie bonds a sum equal to the lesser of (i) ten percent (10%) 
of the proceeds of ttie bonds or (ii) an amount which, together with monies on deposit in the 
Reserve Funds, will equal the highest combined principal and interest requirements for any 
succeeding fiscal year on the bonds (the "Reserve Funds Requiremenf). and if such monies 
do not cause the balance in the Reserve Funds to equal the Reserve Funds Requirement, by 
transferring from said Utilities System Fund to the Resen^e Funds established pursuantto the 
bond resolutions, monthly in advance on or before the 20th day of each month of each year, a 
sum at least equal to twenty percent (20%) of the amount required to be paid into the 
aforesaid Sinking Fund specified in paragraph (b) above, the payments into said Reserve 
Funds to continue until such time as there has been accumulated therein a sum equal to the 
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Reserve Funds Requirement The money in tiie Reserve Funds shall be retained solely for the 
purpose of paying the principal of and interest on Bonds payable from the aforesaid Sinking 
Fund specified In paragraph (b) above as to wt\lct] there wouid otherwise be defau\t In the 
event that additional pari passu bonds are issued hereafter in ttie manner provided by the 
bond ordinance, the payments into said Reserve Fund shall continue, or if tiie said payments 
have ceased because of the accumulation of ttie maximum amount provided above, then such 
payments shall be resumed, until such time as there has been accumulated In said Reserve 
Funds an amount of money equal to the highest combined principal and interest requirements 
in any succeeding fiscal year on all outstanding bonds, including such additional pari passu 
bonds. 

The indentures for Utilities Revenue Bonds. Series 2004 provided for the establishment and 
maintenance of a "Reserve Fund - 2004". The City had tiie option of funding the Resen/e Fund 
- 2004 by (i) depositing a sum equal to the reserve fund requirement into the Reserve Fund -
2004, or (ii) depositing to the credit of the Reserve Fund - 2004 a surely bond, letter of creditor 
insurance policy equal to tiie reserve fund requirement The City satisfied the reserve fund 
requirement by depositing to the credit of tiie Resen/e Fund - 2004 the surety bond issued by 
the reserve insurer. 

(d) The maintenance ofthe Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund established pursuant to tiie 
bond resolutions to care for extensions, additions, improvements, renewals, and replacements 
necessary to properiy operate the Utilities System t̂ y transferring from said Utilities System 
Fund to the Capital Additions and Contingendes Fund established by ̂ e bond resolutions, 
monthly on or before the 20th day of each month of each year, a sum equal to nine percent 
(9%) of the gross revenues of the Utilities System for the preceding month, provided ttiat such 
sum is available after provision is made for tt^ payments required under paragraphs (a), (b), 
and (c) above. Such payments into the Capital Additions and Contingencies Furid shall 
continue until such time as there has been accumulated in said Fund the sum of one million 
dollars ($1,000,000). whereupon such payments may cease and need be resumed thereafter 
only if the total amount of money on deposit in said fund is reduced below the sum of one 
million dollars ($1,000,000), in which event such payments shall be resumed and continue 
until said maximum of one million dollars ($1,000,000) is again accumulated. In addition to 
caring for extensions, additions, improvements, renewals, and replacements necessary to 
properiy operate the Utilities System, the money in the Capital Additions and Contingencies 
Fund shall also be used to pay the principal of and the interest on the bonds, including any 
additional pari passu bonds issued hereafter in ttie manner provided by the bond ordinance, 
for the payment of which there is not suffident money in fhe Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund 
described in paragraphs (b) and (c) above, but the money in said Capital Additions and 
Contingencies Fund shall never be used for the making of improvements and extensions to 
the Utilities System or for payment of principal or interest on Bonds, if the use of said money 
will leave in said Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund for tiie making of emergency 
repairs or replacements less ttian the sum of twenty-five ttiousand dollars ($25,000). 

Any monies remaining in said Utilities System Fund after making tiie above required payments may 
be used by the City for the purpose of calling and/or purchasing and paying any bonds payable from the 
revenues of the Utilities System, orfor such other lawful corporate purposes as tiie goveming autiiority may 
determine, whether such purposes are or are not in relation to the Utilities System. 
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If at any time it shall be necessary to use monies in the Reserve Fund or the Capital Additions and 
Contingencies Fund above provided forthe purpose of paying principal of or interest on bonds payable fi'om 
the aforesaid Sinking Fund as to which there would othenwise be default, then the monies so used shall be 
replaced from the revenues first tiiereafter received, not herein above required to be used for administration, 
operation, and maintenance orfor cun-ent principal, interest, and reserve requirements. If at any time tiiere 
are sufficient monies on deposit in the Reserve Fund and Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund to 
retire all outstanding bonds payable from the Sinking Fund by exercising the redemption option provided by 
such bonds or by purchase on the open martcet, the City may utilize such funds for such purpose. 

j All or any part of the monies in the Reserve Fund and the Capital Additions and Contingencies Fund 
I shall, at ttie written request of the City, be invested in one or both of the following If and to the extent that ttie 
1 same are legal forthe investment of funds ofthe City: (a) direct obligations ofthe United States of America, 
i or (b) negotiable or non-negotiable certificates of deposit issued by any bank, trust company, or national 
1 banking association provided (i) such certificates of deposit are continuously and at all times secured by 

direct obligations of ̂ e United States of America having a market value (exclusive of accrued interest) at all 
I times at jeast equal to the principal amount of such certificates of deposit, and (ii) interest is paid thereon to 
j the extent of one hundred percent (100%). All income derived from such investments shall be added to the 
I money in said respective funds or to the Utilities System Fund, and such investments shall, to the extent at 
1 anytime necessary, be liquidated and the proceeds thereof applied to the purpose for which tiie respective 
''\ funds are created. 

j 15. Utilities System Fund Power Purchase Contract Commitment 

1 On November 15. 1982, the City entered into an electric power purchase contract witti Louisiana 
i Energy and Power Authority (LEPA), a poltttcal subdivision of ttie State of Louisiana, which acquired an 
! interest in the Rodemacher Unit Number 2, a low sulfur-coal burning power plant The City is obligated to 
j pay 52.83% of tiie fixed project costs allocated to LEPA plus energy related costs when ttie unit is operable. 
j This contract expires at the later of (1) the date all outstanding bonds of LEPA have been paid. (2) the date 
i tiie joint operating agreement entered into by LEPA is temninated and settiementof all costs are completed, 
j or(3) July 1,2032. 
I 
: As part of tfie conti'act, tfie City agreed not to issue bonds, notes, or other evidences of 
i indebtedness or enter into any contract to incur any expenses payable from or secured by revenues ofthe 
\ combined utilities system superior to or having a priority over the obligation to pay for ttie costs incun-ed 
i under this contract. 

16. Defined Benefit Pension Plans 
i 
I The City contributes to two single-employer defined benefit pension plans. The City also conbibutes 
I to four statewide cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employee retirement systems. 

Infomiation relative to ttie four statewide cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public 
employee retirement systems is presented below: 
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Municipal Police Employees' Retirement Svstem of Louisiana (MPERS) 

Plan Description. Membership is mandatory for all full-time police officers employed by the City, 
provided tiiey meet statutory criteria. Any member is eligible for normal retirement benefits after participant 
has been a member of the System for one (1)year, if participant has twenty-five (25) years of creditable 
service at any age, or if participant has twenty (20) years of creditable service and is age fifty (50). or has 
twelve (12) years of creditable service and is age fifty-five (55). Benefit rates are three and one-third 
percent (31/̂ %) of final compensation per number of years of creditable service not to exceed one hundred 
percent (100%). Benefit and conti-ibution requirements are established by state law. MPERS issues a 
publicly available financial report tiiat includes financial statements and required supplementary information. 
That report may be obtained by writing to Munidpal Police Employees' Retirement System, P. 0 . Box 
94095, Baton Rouge. LA 70804-9095. 

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Costs. Members are cun-ently required to contiibute seven and 
one-half percent (7.50%) of their annual salary to the system, including supplemental pay. The City 
contiibutes an actuarially determined rate, presently set at nine and one-half percent (9.50%) of ttie 
member's salary, including supplemental pay. The City's contributions to MPERS, for the fiscal years ended 
April 30, 2009, 2008. and 2007, were $1,020,014, $1,213,033 and $1,241,817 respectively. 

Firefighters' Retirement Svstem of Louisiana (FRS) 

Plan Description. This Plan is a defined benefit pension plan covering firemen employed by a 
municipality, parish, or fire protection district of ttie State hired after December 31.1979. Employees with 
twenty (20) or more years of service who have attained age fifty (50), employees who have twelve (12) years 
of service who have attained age fifty-five (55). or employees who have twenty-five (25) years of service at 
any age are entitled to annual pension benefits equal to three and one-third percent (31^%) of their average 
final compensation based on the thirty-six (36) consecutive months of highest pay multiplied by their total 
years of service, not to exc^eed one hundred percent (100%). Employees may electto receive tiieir pension 
benefits in the fomi of a joint and/or survivor annuity. If employees temiinate before rendering twelve (12) 
years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the portion of their accumulated plan benefits attributable to 
their employer's contributions. Benefits are payable over the employees' lives in the form of a monthly 
annuity. Benefit and contribution requirements are established by state law. FRS issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary infonnation. That report may 
be obtained by writing to Firefighters' Retirement System, 3100 Brentwood Drive, Baton Rouge, LA 70809. 

Funding Poiicv and Annual Pension Costs. Members are cxjrrentty required to contribute eight 
percent (8%) of ttieir annual salary, including supplemental pay to the Plan. The City contributes an 
actuarially determined rate, presentiy at twelve and one-hatt percent (12.50%) of the member's salary, 
including supplemental pay. The City's contributions to FRS, for the fiscal years ended April 30, 2009, 
2008. and 2007. were $805,829. $829,568 and $833,455, respectively. 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Svstem (LASERS) 

Plan Description. All state employees, except certain classes of employees specifically excluded by 
statute, become members of tiie system as a condition of employment. Statewide elected officials and 
officials appointed by the governor may. at ttieir option, become members of the System. The only member 
of this System from the City is the City Court Judge. The age and years of creditable service required in 
order for a member to retire with full benefits are established by Statute and vary depending on the 
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member's employer and job classification. The substantial majority of members may retire with full benefits 
at ages ranging from any age upon completing ttiirty (30) years of creditable service to age sixty (60) upon 
completing ten (10) years of creditable service. 

The basic annual retirement benefit for substantially all members is equal to two and one-half 
percent (2%%) of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service plus three 
hundred dollars ($300). Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned 
compensation for the period of ttiirty-six (36) consecutive monf)S of employment during which tiie member's 
aggregate eamed compensation was greatest The maximum annual retirement benefit cannot exceed the 
lesser of one hundred percent (100%) of average compensation or certain specified dollar amounts or 
actuarially detemiined monetary limits, which vary depending upon tiie member's age at retirement Judges 
and court officers and certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal to one 
percent (1%) of average compensation multiplied by the numt)er of years of creditable service in their 
respective capacity. As an alternative to the above basic retirement benefit, a member may elect to receive 
his retirement benefits under any one of four different options providing for a reduced retirement benefit 
payable throughout his life with certain benefits being paid to his designated beneficiary after his death. 

Benefit and contribution requirements are established by state law. LASERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That 
report may be obtained by writing to Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System, P. O. Box 44213, 
Baton Rouge. LA 70804-4213. 

Funding Poiicv and Annual Pension Costs. Judges, court officers, and legislators contribute eleven 
and one-half percent (11.50%) of ttieir salary to the System. The City contiibutes an actuarially detennined 
rate, presentty set at eighteen and one-half percent (18.50%) of the member's annual salary. The City's 
contiibutions to LASERS for ttie years ended April 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $7,868, $7,992 and 
$7,148, respectively. 

Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (PERSL) 

Plan Description. The only member of tiiis System firom the City of Alexandria is ttie Clerk of City 
Court. Participants become fully vested after ten (10) years of service. Any member is eligible for normal 
retirement at age sixty (60) with at least ten (10) years of creditable service, at age fifty-five (55) with 
twenty-five (25) years of creditable service, or at any age with at least thirty (30) years of creditable service. 
The retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, is equal to three percent (3%) of ttie member's final-average 
salary for each year of creditable service not to exceed the greater of one hundred percent of final salary 
(last 12 months) or final average compensation. Final average salary is the employee's average salary over 
the thirty-six (36) consecutive or joined monttis that produce tiie highest average. The System also 
provides death and disability benefits. Benefit and contribution requirements are established by state law. 
PERSL issues a publicly available financial report ttiat may be obtained by vmting to the Parochial 
Employees' Retirement System. P.O. Box 14619, Baton Rouge, LA 70898-4619. 

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Costs. The member contt"ibutes nine and one-half percent 
(9.50%) of their salary to the System. The City presently contributes twelve and one-fourtii percent 
(12.25%) to the System as an employer match. The City's contributions to PERSL. for the fiscal years 
ended April 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007. were $3,070. $3,061 and $2,970, respectively. 
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Information relative to the ttiree single-employer defined benefit pension plans is presented below: 

City of Alexandria Employees' Retirement Svstem (COAERS) 

Plan Description. Substantially all employees of the City, except firemen and policeman, become 
members of ttie COAERS as a condition of employment The COAERS provides retirement benefits, 
disability benefits, and survivors' benefits. Members with ten (10) years of creditable sen/ice may retire at 
age sixty-two (62); members with at least twenty (20) years of creditable service may retire at age fifty-five 
(55); members v^tti ttiirty (30) years of service may retire regardless of age. The retirement allowance Is 
equal to ttiree percent (3%) of ttie member's average compensation multiplied by his number of years of 
creditable service, not to exceed one hundred percent (100%) of his average compensation. Average 
compensation is defined as the highest three (3) year average annual compensation. Retirement benefits 
vest afterten (10) years of creditable service. Benefit and contiibution provisions are established by state 
law. COAERS issues a publicly available financial report ttiat may be obtained by writing to the City of 
Alexandria Employees' Retirement System. P.O. Box 71, Alexandria, Louisiana 71309-0071. 

Funding Poiicv and Annual Pension Cost For ttie COAERS, employees are required by statiJte to 
contribute ten percent (10%) of tiieir salary to the System. The City is required by statute to contiibute 
remaining amounts necessary to finance ttie COAERS at an actuarially determined rate currentiy set at 
twenty six and forty nine-tenths percent (26.49%). The City's contributions to COAERS, forthe fiscal years 
ended April 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007. were $5,261,985, $5,218,293 and $5,239,889. respectively. 

Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (FPARF) 

Plan Description. Effective May 1, 1993. the Fund merged into ttie statewide Firefighters' 
Retirement System (FRS). On this date, all retirees and survivors receiving benefits, at April 30, 1993, 
transfen-ed to ttie FRS. In the event ttiat a firefighter, hired prior to January 1,1980, exercises his or her 
right to a twenty (20) year retirement any time under the age of fifty (50) and is not eligible to receive 

j benefits from the state FRS, then tiie Fund shall provide benefits until that person is eligible for benefits 
I under tiie FRS. In addition, the City of Alexandria and tiie Fund guaranteed that if a firefighter dies, retires. 
i or becomes disabled subsequent to the merger, then the Fund shall payto the firefighter, orthe firefighter's 
1 survivors and/or beneficiaries, the difference, if any, where those benefits payable under the Fund prior to 
! the merger exceed those benefits payable under the FRS. Benefits and contribution provisions are 
i established by state law. FPARF issues a publicly available financial report that may be obtained by writing 
i to the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund of the City of Alexandria, P. O. Box 71, Alexandria. Louisiana 
I 71309-0071. 

1 Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost. Forthe FPARF, members are not required to contribute 
to the funds. The City is required to contribute an amount sufficient to meet the operating deficit of each 
fund vinthout regard for reserve requirements accruing or having accrued on an actuarial basis. The City's 
contiibutions to FPARF for the years fiscal ended April 30, 2009. 2008, and 2007, were $25,000, $20,000 

I and $20,000, respectively. 
i 
j For the two single-employer defined benefit pension plans of the City, benefit and conti-ibution 

provisions are established by state law and may be amended only by the Louisiana Legislature. 
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The City's annual pension cost for the current year and related information for each of the City's 
single-employer plans is as follows: 

COAERS FPARF 
Conti"ibution rate 

City 
Plan members 

Annual pension cost 
Contributions made 
Actuarial valuation date 

j Actuarial cost metiiod 

Remaining amortization period 

! Asset valuation meOiod 

1 
1 

i 

] Actuarial assumptions 
1 Investment rate of return 
1 Projected salary increases 

Includes inflation rate of 
1 Includes merit raises at 
1 Cost of living adjustments 

• 

^ 
; 
1 

i 
City of Alexandria 

i Employees' Retirement 
System 

Firemen's Pension 
and Relief Fund 

Three Year Trend Infonnation 

Year 
Ending 

04/30/09 
04/30/08 
04/30/07 

04/30/09 
04/30/08 
04/30/07 

17. Defined Contribution Pension Plan 

Annual 
Pension 

Ck)st (APC) 
$5,261,985 

5.218,923 
5.239,889 

$ 25,000 
20,000 
20,000 

26.49% 
10.00% 

$ 5.261.985 
$ 5,261,985 

12/31/08 
Frozen Entry 
Age Nomial 

11 years 

Five year 
smoottiing for 
stocks. Ottier 

assets at 
amortized cost 

COAERS 

8.00% 
5.50% 
3.25% 
2.25% 
None 

Percentage 
of APC 

Contiibuted 
100% 
100 
100 

100% 
100 
100 

n/a 
nJa 

$ 25,000 
$ 25,000 

n/a 
n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

FPARF 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

Net 
Pension 

Obligation 
$ 

-
-

$ 
-
-

The City sponsors a defined contribution plan (the Plan) available to unclassified employees who 
elect to participate. The Plan is administered by a third party administrator. The City's covered payroll for 
employees participating in the Plan forthe current year was $1,175,418. Employer contributions forthe 
fiscal year were $177,370 or approximately fifteen percent (15%) of covered payroll. Employees do not 
contribute to the plan. 
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Under the provisions ofthe Plan. City contributions are determined annually and contributions are 
allocated to participants based on participant's compensation. All monies in the employee's accounts, 
including the Cit/s contributions, are immediately vested. 

18. Post employment benefits 

Plan Description. The City of Alexandria's medical benefits are provided tiirough a comprehensive medical 
plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement 

The employees are covered by a retirement system whose retirement eligibility provisions are as 
follows: 30 years of service at any age; age 55 and 25 years of service; age 60 and 20 years of service; or, 
age 62 and 10 years of service. Complete plan provisions are included in the official plan documents. 

Contribution Rates. Employees do not conti-ibute to their post employment benefits costs until they 
become retirees and begin receiving ttiose benefits. The plan provisions and contribution rates are 
contained in the official plan documents. 

Fund Policy. Until 2006, the City of Alexandria recognized the costof provkJing post-employment medical 
benefits (City of Alexandria's portion of the retiree medical benefit premiums) as an expense when ttie 
t>enefit premiums were due and thus financed the cost ofthe post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go 
basis. Effective witti tiie Fiscal Year beginning May 1. 2006, City of Alexandria implemented Govemment 
Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Post emptoyment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 45). The funding policy is not to fund the ARC 
except to the extent of the cun-ent year's retiree funding costs. 

In 2009, City of Alexandria's portion of health care funding cost for retired employees totaled 
$217,486. These amounts were applied toward ttie Net OPEB Benefit Obligation as shown in ttie following 
table. 

Annual Required Contribution. City of Alexandria's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance witii GASB 45. The Annual Required Contiibution (ARC) is tiie sum of 
the Nomial Cost plus ttie contribution to amortize the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL). A level dollar, open 
amortization period of 30 years (the maximum amortization period allowed by GASB 43/45) has been used 
for the post-employment benefits. The total ARC for the fiscal year beginning May 1,2008 is $438,039. as 
set forth below: 

Medical 
Nomial Cost $ 166,512 
30-year UAL amortization amount 271,527 
/Vnnual required contribution (ARC) $ 438.039 
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j Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation (Asset). The table below shows City of Alexandria's Net Other 
j Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation (Asset) for fiscal year ending April 30. 2009: 

1 Medical 
1 1. Beginning Net OPEB Obligation 
j (Asset) 5/1/2008 
.; 2. Annual required contribution 
' 3. Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 
! (Asset): .04X[1] 
j 4. ARC Adjustinent [1]/17.292 
j (Interest 4.0% and Salary Increase 0.0%) 

5- OPEB Cost [2]+[3]-[4] 
1 6. Contribution 
i 7. Current year retiree premium 
j 8. Change in Net OPEB Obligation: 
j [5]-[6]-[71 
I 9. Ending Net OPEB Obligation: (Asset) 
i 4/30/2009: [l]+[8] 

$ 262.430 
438,039 

10,497 

15,176 
433,360 

0 
312,991 

+120,369 

$ 382.799 

The following table shows City of Alexandria's annual post employment benefits (PEB) cost, percentage of 
the cost contributed, and the net unfunded post employment benefits (PEB) liability (asset): 

Post 
Employment 

Benefit 
Medical 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

April 30. 2009 

Annual 
OPEB Cost 
$ 433,360 

Percentage 
of Annual 

Cost 
Contributed 

72,2% 

Net OPEB 
Obligation 

(Asset) 
$ 382.799 

Funded Status and Funding Progress. In the fiscal year ending April 30.2009, City of Alexandria made 
no contributions to its post employment benefits plan. The plan was not funded at all. has no assets, and 
hence has a funded ratio of zero. As of May 1, 2008. the most recent actuarial valuation, the Actuarial 
Accnjed Liability (AAL) was $4,695,278, which is defined as that portion, as determined by a particular 
actuarial cost method (City of Alexandria uses the Unit Credit Cost Metiiod), ofthe actuarial present value of 
post employment plan benefits and expenses v/hich is not provided by normal cost. Since the plan was not 
funded in fiscal year 2008/2009. the entire actuarial accnjed liability of $4,695,278 was unfunded. 

Medical 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 4,695.278 
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 0 
Unfunded Act. Accrued Liability (U/\AL) 4.695.278 

Funded Ratio (Act. Val. Assets/AAL) 0% 

Covered Payroll (active plan members) $ 29.613,801 
I UAAL as a percentage of covered 

payroll 15.86% 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Actuarial valuations involve estimates of ttie value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into ttie future. The actuarial valuation for post 
employment benefits includes estimates and assumptions regarding (1) tijmover rate; (2) retirement rate; (3) 
healtii care cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate (investment retijrn assumption); and (6) the 
period to which ttie costs apply (past, cun-ent, or future years of service by employees). ActiJarially 
detennined amounts are subject to continual revision as actijal results are compared to past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future. 

The actuarial calculations are based on tiie types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive 
plan (the plan as understood by City of Alexandria and its employee plan members) at tiie time of the 
valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between City of Alexandria and its plan members to that point. 
The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitiy incorporate the potential effects 
of legal or contractual fijnding limitations on ttie pattern of cost sharing between City of Alexandria and plan 
members in the future. Consistent with the long-tenn perspective of actijarial calculations, the actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in 
actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 

Actuarial Cost Method. The ARC is determined using ttie Unit Credit Cost Method. The employer portion 
of the cost for retiree medical care in each fijture year is detennined by projecting the current cost levels 
using the healthcare cost trend rate and discounting this projected amount to the valuation date using the 
other described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the investment retum assumption (discount rate), 
mortality, and turnover. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets. Since inception of tiie actuarial valuation, there are not any assets. It is 
anticipated that in futijre valuations a smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial Standards Board 
ASOP 6, as provided in paragraph number 125 of GASB Statement 45. 

Turnover Rate. An age-related tumover scale based on actual experience as described by adminisb'ative 
staff has been used. The rates, when applied to the active employee census, produce an annual tijmover of 
approximately 10%. The rates for each age are below: 

Age 
18 
26 
41 

-25 
-40 
-54 

55+ 

Percent Tumover 
20.0% 
12.0% 
8.0% 
6.0% 

It has also been assumed that 40% of future eligible retirees will decline coverage because of tiie high 
retiree contributions required 

j Post employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements. Based on past experience, it has been 
\ assumed that entitlement to benefits will commence three years after ttie eariiest retirement eligibility, as 

. described above under "Plan Description". Medical benefits are provided to employees upon actijal 
retirement The employees are covered by a retirement system whose retirement eligibility provisions are as 
follows: 30 years of service at any age; age 55 and 25 years of sen/ice; age 60 and 20 years of service; or, 
age 62 and 10 years of service. 
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Investment Return Assumption (Discount Rate). GASB Statement 45 states that the investment 
retum assumption should be the estimated long-tenn investment yield on the investinents that are expected 
to be used to finance ttie payment of benefits (that is, for a plan which is funded). Based on the assumption 
ttiat the ARC will not be fijnded. a 4% annual investment retijrn has been used in this valuatton. This is a 
conservative estimate ofthe expected long temn retum of a balanced and conservative investtnent portfolio 
under professional management 

Health Care Cost Trend Rate. The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on 
projections peri'omied by the Office of the Actuary at tiie Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services as 
published in National Health Care Expenditures Projections: 2003 to 2013, Table 3: National Healtii 
Expenditures, Aggregate and per Capita Amounts, Percent Distribution and Average Annual Percent 
Change by Source of Funds: Selected Calendar Years 1990-2013. released in January, 2004 by ttie Healtii 
Care Financing Administration (www.cms.hhs.gov). "State and Local" rates for 2008 through 2013 firom this 
report were used, with rates beyond 2013 graduated down to an ultimate annual rate of 5.0% for 2016 and 
later. 

Mortality Rate. The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002. based on a 
fixed blend of 50% ofthe unloaded male mortality rate and 50% of the unloaded female mortality rates, was 
used. This is the mortality table which the Intemal Revenue Service requires to be used in detemiining the 
value of accrued benefits in defined benefit pension plans. 

Method of Determining Value of Benefits. The "value of benefits" has been assumed to be the portion 
of ttie premium after retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree and has been used as 
the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of OPEB benefits to be paid. The City pays a portion ofthe 
retiree premium (based on the blended active/retired rate) before Medicare eligibility, but does not pay any 
poriJon of the premium after the retiree's eligibility for Medicare (age 65). Since GASB 45 mandates tiiat 

i "unblended" rates applicable to the coverage provided to retirees be used, we have estimated the "unblended" 
j rates for retirees before Medicare eligibility. It has been assumed that the total retiree rate before Medicare 
I eligibility is 130% ofthe blended active/retired rate. 

{ 19. Leases 

I A. City as Lessee 
,i 
j On March 29, 1995, the City entered into a lease agreement witii the England Economic and 
j Industrial Development District (EEIDD) to lease the natural gas. water, and waste water systems located 
i within the England Airpart̂ . The tenn of the lease is for twenty (20) years beginning March 29. 1995 and 
j ending March 28.2015. The lease agreement provides that the City shall pay the EEIDD as rent under the 
J lease five percent (5%) of gross charges for service billed to customers located witiiin the Airparî  
j boundaries including gross charges billed to the EEIDD. Lease payments are due to the EEIDD on May 
J 15th and November 15th. It is not possible to determine the future minimum rental payments due under ttiis 

lease. During the cun-ent period, the City paid EEIDD $43,152 under the tenns of the lease representing 
fiscal year ended April 30, 2009 obligations. 

On January 11.2000, the City entered into a proposal between Community Receiving Homes, Inc. 
and the City of Alexandria conceming the leasing of 74.92 acres of land adjacent to the intersection of LA 
Hv^ 28 West and LA Hwy 3504 in Rapides Parish, Louisiana. The terms of the proposal provided in part 
for the following: 
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A) The City of Alexandria agrees to lease fi'om Community Receiving Homes, Inc. the front 16.47 
acres bordering LA Hwy 28 West for the sum no less than $100.00 annually per acre, or one 
thousand six hundred forty-seven and no/100 dollars ($1,647.00) annually. Term of tiie lease to 
be 50 years from date of inception, beginning January 1, 2000. 

B) The City of Alexandria agrees to lease from Community Receiving Homes, Inc. the remaining 
58.45 acres for a sum not less tiian $100.00 per acre annually, or five thousand eight hundred 
forty-five and no/100 ($5,845.00) annually. Term of the lease to be 5 years from date of 

j inception beginning January 1, 2000. 

Annual lease payments total $7,492, however, since no formal lease agreements were executed 
regarding this proposal, it is not practical to reflect future minimum rental payments under tiiis arrangement 

i B. City as Lessor 

I The City is the lessor of property under operating leases expiring in various years. The following is a 
I summary of property on lease at April 30, 2009: 

Cost 
Startek Building $ 3.522.632 
Convention Center Complex 3.301.568 

$ 6,824,200 

Total lease revenues for tiie fiscal year, consisting solely of minimum rentals on the above leases, 
amounted to $127,305. 

As ofthe balance sheet date, certain lease payments on the Convention Center Complex were 
delinquent and the lessee was in default with the terms ofthe lease. Minimum future rentals to be received 
on Startek building lease (terni of lease 01/01/09 -12/31/10) as ofApril 30, 2009, are: 

Year ended April 30. Amount 
2010 $ 84,870 

Thereafter : 
Total Minimum Future Rentals $ 84,870 

20. Compensation Paid to Members of The City Council 

In accordance with the requirements ofthe Office ofthe Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, the 
following report reflects compensation paid to members ofthe City Council, City of Alexandria, for ttie fiscal 
year ended April 30. 2009. 

Charies L. Fowler, Jr. $ 18,000 
Everett Hobbs 18,000 
Myron K. Lawson 18,000 
Louis J. Marshall 11.146 
Charles F.Smith 11,150 
Hany Silver 18,000 
Roosevelt L. Johnson 18,000 
Jonathan D. Goins 6.923 
Edward Larvadain. Ill 6,923 
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21. Deficit Balance - Non-Major Individual Fund 

The self insurance risk management fund had a deficit fund balance of $365,659 at April 30.2009. 
The deficit was primarily due to the actuarial accrual for claims incurred but not paid at year end. 
Management intends to provide additional funding from other various funds in the ftjture to offset tiie deficit. 

22. Contingencies 

Management has not calculated ttie possible rebate of arbiti-age interest, as ofApril 30. 2009, on 
each of the recent tax exempt bond issues. The contingent liability, stated simply, is ttie interest eamed 
from the investment of unspent bond proceeds ttiat is in excess of tiie amount of eamings that would have 
been obtained had the investment rate been equal to ttie yield on the bonds. Since the rebate calculation is 
a cumulative calculation perfomied until all proceeds have been expended, management believes ttiat ttie 
amount of ttie contingent liability for arbitrage interest, if any. will be eliminated in future years. In tiie event 
ttiat the contingent liability for arbittBge interest is not eliminated, the City will be liable for remittance ofthe 
rebate amount, as subsequently calculated, to the federal govemment 

On August 19.1983, ttie City of Alexandria entered into a merger contract witti the Municipal Police 
Employees' Retirement System (MPERS). The purpose ofthe merger was to transfer all active policemen 
who were then participating in the City's Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund into the statewide retirement 
system. In conjunction with ttie merger of active policemen with MPERS, the City entered into a private 
agreement, "No Loss of Benefit Guarantee," wnth the local policemen which guaranteed that no member 
would lose any rights or benefits that the member would have been entitled to under the Policemen's 
Pension and Relief Fund. There are potential claims where certain retired employees may file an action 
against the City as a result of this merger. The essence of tiie unasserted claims is the position of certain 
retired police officers that some have a significant difference in benefits received from MPERS and the 
benefits that would have been received under the old Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund due to the fact 
that under MPERS overtime is not considered in computing retirement benefits. There are significant 
questions as to whether there is an actual obligation that the City would owe. If there is no obligation, then 
the City would be prohibited by the state constitution from responding to tiie unasserted claims. 

23. Compliance With Bond Ordinance No. 56-2003 

i Section 8.5 of Bond Ordinance No. 56-2003. Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, 
j provides the following: "Each such audit, in addition to whatever matters may be thought proper by the 
{ accountant to be included therein, shall include the following." 

j 1. A statement in detail ofthe income and expenditures ofthe Utilities System for such fiscal 
! year. See Exhibit H, Page 27. 
\ 2. A balance sheet as of the end of such fiscal year. See Exhibit 6, Page 26. 
j 3. The accountant's comments regarding the manner in which the Issuer has earned out the 
] requirements of this Bond Ordinance, and the accountant's recommendations for any 
] changes or improvements in ttie operation ofthe Utilities System or ttie method of keeping 
] ttie records related tiiereto. See Special Letter, Page 94-95. 

4. A list of the insurance policies in force at the end of the Fiscal year, setting out as to each 
policy the amount of the policy, the risks covered, ttie name ofthe insurer and the expiration 
date of the policy. See Schedule 5, Pages 76-77. 
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5. The number of metered water, gas, electric and sewerage customers and the number of 
unmetered water, gas, electric, and sewerage customers, if any. See Schedule 4, Page 75 

6. Description of the withdrawal of any Utilities System user comprising 4% or more of Utilities 
System sales measured in terms of revenue dollars, since the last audit. None. 

7. An analysis of additions, replacements, and improvements to the physical properties ofthe 
Utilities System, including a description of any significant facility retirements or expansions 
planned or undertaken since the last audit. See Note 6 to Financial Statements, Pages 46-
48. 

24. Concentration - Utility System Fund 

Within tiie Utilities System Fund, during the fiscal year ended April 30, 2009. approximately eleven 
percent (11 %) of water revenue was received from one manufacturing customer and approximately eleven 
percent (11 %) of gas revenues was received from one manufacturing customer. Subsequent to ttie end of 
the cun'ent fiscal year, the major water customer announced plans to close their facility during year 2009. 
Management is of ttie opinion that the net revenues after costs derived from tills customer will not adversely 
affect the operations ofthe Utilities System Fund. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended April 30,2009 

Revenues 
Taxes 

Property taxes 
Sales t ^es 
Other 

intergovemmental 
Fees, commissions, and fines 
Licenses and permits 
Charges for services 
Investment eamings 
MisceUaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 

Capital outlay 
Debt service 

Principal 
Interest and otJTer charges 

Total Expenditures 

Deficiency of Revenues over Expendi tures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds from sale capital assets 

Tota! Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 

Fund BaIarK:es, End of Year 

Budgeted 
Original 

$ 2.460,000 
7.100.000 

1,281,900 
715,200 

2,598,200 
208,430 
325,000 
252,805 

14.941,535 

Amounts 
Final 

$ 2,365,000 
7.455.000 

200,000 
3,242,387 

744,000 
2,598.200 

245,430 
100.000 
291.805 

17,241.822 

Actual 

$ 2,416,677 
8.522.576 

435,674 
2,860.872 

816.536 
2.930,266 

300,454 
47,176 

748,727 
19,078,958 

Schedule 1 

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 51.677 
1,067,576 

235,674 
(381.515) 

72.536 
332.056 

55,024 
(52.824) 
456.922 

1,837,136 

10.403,632 
26,303,507 
11,360,713 
3.428,014 

940,000 
906.838 

53,342,704 

(38.401,169) 

34,454,083 
(5.282.933) 

29.171,150 

(9,230,019) 

17.787,862 

$ 8,557,843 

13,003,770 
28,255.532 
11,681,611 
3,682,271 

940.000 
906.838 

58,470,022 

(41,228.200) 

35.089,189 
(4,541,564) 

30,547,625 

(10,680.575) 

17,787,862 

$ 7.107.287 

12,356,579 
27.061,317 
11,042,418 
3,028.987 

940,000 
906.726 

55.336,027 

(36,257.069) 

37.709.199 
(4.913.173) 

32,845 
32,828.871 

(3,428,198) 

17.787.862 

$ 14,359.664 

647.191 
1,194,215 

639,193 
653.284 

112 
3.133.995 

4.971,131 

2,520,010 
(371,609) 

32,845 
2,281,246 

7.252.377 

-

5 7.252.377 

See independent auditor's report. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
City Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended April 30,2009 

Revenues 
Taxes 

Sales taxes 
Total Revenues 

Otiier Rnancing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers out 

Tota! Other Rnar>dng Sources (Uses) 

Net Change In Fund Balances 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances, End of Year 

Budgeted 
Original 

$ 32,500,000 
32,500,000 

(32,500,000) 
(32,500,000) 

-

63,733 

$ 63,733 

Amounts 

A. 

$ 

Final 

33,550.000 
33,550.000 

(33,550.000) 
(33,550,000) 

-

63,733 

63.733 

Actual 

$ 34.866,693 
34,886,693 

(34,447.038) 
(34,447.038) 

419,655 

63.733 

$ 483,388 

Schedule 2 

Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive 
(Negatfvel 

$ 1,316,693 
1.316,693 

(897.038) 
(897.038) 

419,655 

-

$ 419.655 

See independent auditor's report. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended Apr i l 30, 2009 

Federal Grantor/ 

Pass Through Grantor/ 

Program Title 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urtan Development 
Community Planning and Development 

Direct 
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 
Honie Investment Partnership Program 

Passed-through the State of Louisiana 

Emergency Shelter Grants Program 

Agency Totals 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Bureau of Justice Assistance 

Passed-through tt>e State of Louisiana 
Edward Bryne Memorial Formula Grant Program 
Edward Bryne Msmorial Justice A£SistafK» Grant Program 

Office of Justice Programs 
Direct 

Operation Weed and Seed 

Agency Totals 
Enviromental Protection Agency 

Direct 
Brownsfields Assessment & Cleanup Cooperative Ageeements 

U.S. Department of Transportation 
Federal Transit Administration 

Direct 
Federal Transit Formula Grants 

Federal Highway Administration 
Passed-through ttie State of Louisiana 

Department of Transportation and Development 
Highway Planning and Construction 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 
Passed-ihnxigh the State of Louisiana 

State a id Community Highway Safety 
State and Community Highway Safety 

Total-CFDA20.600 
Agency Totals 

U.S. Department of Hometand Security 
Passed thnxigh Hie State of Louisiana 

Disaster Grants - Put>!ic Assistance (Presidential Deciared) 
Passed thnxjgh the Rapides Parish Police Jury 

Ofiice of Hon>elar>d Security and Emergency Preparedness 
Agency Totals 

Federal 

CFDA Pass-tt irough 

Number Grant Number 

Award 
Amount 

Amount 

Expended 

Schedule 3 

Amount 

Provided 

Subrecipients 

14.218 
14.239 

14.231 
CFMS# 650088 & 

665939 

$ 1.330,450 
1.298.433 

82,500 

2,711,383 

$ 684,483 
350.519 

75,501 

1.110,503 

75,501 

75.501 

16,579 
16,736 

16.595 

66.81! 

20.507 

BO7'3-O09 
BOS-3-006 

70,000 
24,570 

146,330 
240,900 

200.000 

20,600 FT 08-11-00 
20 600 PT 09-21-00 

97.036 

97.067 2OO6-GE-T6-0O69 

52,43a 
45,000 
97,438 

53,602 
3,312 

98,865 

155,799 

6.824 

3,836,697 746,365 

20,205 SPN 744-40-0018 373.200 241,015 

30,27*) 
30,810 

61,084 
4,307,335 1.048,467 

M/A 2,667,062 

72.827 72,154 

72,827 2,739,216 

TOTALS $7,532,445 $5,060,809 $ 75,501 

Note: 
Expenditures tor CFDA #20.507 are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. All other expenditures on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards are reported on the mocfitied accrual basis of accountir>g. Note 1 to the firrandal statements provides additional infomiation relative to the City's 
accounting policies. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

Utilities System Enterprise Fund 
Unaudited Summary of Utility Service Customers 

April 30, 2009 

Schedule 4 

Number of Customers 
Type of Service April 30. 2009 

Electricity 24,509 
Water 21,435 
Gas 16,511 
Wastewater 17,196 

See independent auditoî s report 
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Unaudited Listing of Insurance in Force 
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Schedule 5 

(Continued) 
, t 

i Property 
Insurer: The Travelers Insurance Companies 
Expiration date: May 6, 2009 
Coverage: 

Real propeily, comprising buildings, and personal property 
Self-insured retention: 

$100,000 per occurrence deductible 
Policy limits of liability: 

$250,000,000 per occurrence with specified sublimits 

Boiler and Machinery 
Insurer The Travelers Insurance Companies 
Expiration date; May 6, 2009 
Coverage: 

Comprehensive boiler and machinery coverage including production machines 
Loss retention: 

Varies with a minimum of $50,000 per occurrence 
Policy limits of liability: 

$25,000,000 per accident with specified sublimits 

General Liability/Law Enforcement 
Insurer Lexington Insurance Company 
Expiration date: May 6, 2009 
Coverage: 

Bodily injury and property damage, personal and advertsing injury, 
and law enforcement liability 

Self-insured retention: 
$500,000 each and every loss and/or claim and/or occurrence 

Policy limits of liability: 
$1,050,000 each and every loss and/or occun-ence Combined Single Limit 
$2,000,000 in the aggregate annually as respects products/completed operations 

Public Officials Errors and Omissions 
Coverage: 

Any actual or alleged error or misstatement, omission, act of neglect or breach 
of duty including misfeasance, malfeasance and non-feasance by the Insured; 
includes actual or alleged violations of US or state constitutions or any law 
affording protection for civil rights 

See independent auditor's report 
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Schedule 5 
(Concluded) 

Employee Benefits Liability 
Insurer Lexington Insurance Company 
Expiration date: May 6, 2009 
Coverage: 

Any negligent act, error or omission in the administration of the Insured's 
employee benefits programs 

Self-insured retention: 
$500,000 each and every loss and/or claim and/or occurrehce 

Policy limits of liabilfty: 
$1,000,000 each and every loss and^or occurrence Combined Single Limit 
$2,000,000 in the aggregate annually as respects products/completed operations 

Specific Excess Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability Indemnity 
Insurer Safety National Casualty Company 
Expiration date; May 6, 2009 
Coverage: 

Workers' compensation - statutory 
Employers' liability - any cause of action by an employee against the City for bodily injury or disease 
in the course of employment 

Loss retention: 
$500,000 per occun-ence 

Policy limits of liability; 
Wori<ers' compensation - statutory 
Employers'liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Public Officials Bond 
Insurer Western Surety Bond 
Expiration Date: September 9, 2009 
Coverage: Mayor 
Policy limits of liability; $100,000 

Fidelity Bond 
Insurer Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Expiration date: May 21. 2009 
Coverage: Tax Collector 
Policy limits of liability: $10,000 

Public Employees Honesty Bond 
Insurer Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 
Expiration date: September 1, 2009 
Coverage: 

Employees in the Divisions of Finance, Public Worths, Planning and CADS 
Loss retention: $1,000 per occurrence 
Policy limits of iiabJIity: $100,000 per employee 

See independent auditor's report. 
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 

Audit of Financial Statements Performed 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended April 30, 2009, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 
28, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Govemment Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's intemal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cit/s internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
internal control ofthe City of Alexandria, Louisiana over financial report'ng. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we 
identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements 
on a timely basis. A significant defictency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that 
adversely affects the City's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America such that there is 
more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City's financial statements that Is more than 
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the intemal control of the City of Alexandria. Louisiana. 
We consider the deficiencies described in Finding 2009-01 through Finding 2009-03 in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting. 
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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in 
I more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented 
• or detected by the City's internal control. 

Our consideration ofthe intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that 

j might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose ail significant deficiencies 
j that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we consider Finding 2009-02 through 
j Finding 2008-03 to be material weaknesses. 

\ We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to 
j the management of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, in a separate letter, entitled Other Comments and 
I Recommendations, dated October 28, 2009. 
i 
\ Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
i misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
j and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
j determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
; provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
1 results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters required to be reported under 
j Govemment Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
j questioned costs in Finding 2009-04 to Finding 2009-07. 

! The City of Alexandria, Louisiana's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
\ accompanying Management's Connective Action Plan. We did not audit the City of Alexandria, Louisiana's 

response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the Mayor, members of the City Council, 
management ofthe City of Alexandria, Louisiana, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities, and the 

i Legislative Auditor's office of the State of Louisiana. This report is not intended to be, and should not be, 
I used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 

report is in fact a public document 

Certified 

October 28, 2009 
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Report on Compliance wfth Requirements Applicable to 
Each Major Program and on fntemaf Control Over Compliance 

in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, with the types of compliance 
requirements described In the U.S. Office Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement {hat are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended April 30,2009. The 
City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section ofthe accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of management of 
the City of Alexandria, Louisiana. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based 
on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about v\^ether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
a major federal program occunred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does 
not provide a legal detennination ofthe City of Alexandria, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the Crty of Alexandria, Louisiana complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended April 30,2009. 
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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

intemal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective intemal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's intemal 
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures forthe purpose of expressing our opinion on 
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's intemal control 
over compliance. 

A control deficiency in an entity's intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that 
adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote 
likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than 
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in 
more than a remote likelihood that materiai noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control that mig ht be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, members of the City Council, 
management ofthe City of Alexandria, Louisiana, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities, and the 
Legislative Auditor's office of the State of Louisiana and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
in fact a public document. 

.ertSieaJ*dblicAc 

October 28. 2009 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

for the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Intemal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to the financial statements? 

Federal Awards 

Intemal control over major programs: 
Material weakness(es) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered 

to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported In accordance with Circular A-133, 
Section 510(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 
CFDA # 14.239 Home Investment Partnership 

Program 
CFDA # 97.036 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 

{Presidential Declared) 

Dollar threshold used to disfinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? 

X 

X 

X 

Unqualified 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

None reported 

_ No 

Yes 

Yes 

Unqualified 

Yes X 

$300,000 

Yes X 

No 

None reported 

No 

No 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

for the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Part II - Findings Relating to the Financial Statements which are 
Required to be Reported Under Govemment Auditing Standards 

FINDING 2009-01 CENTERALIZED RECORDKEEPING FOR GRANT AWARDS 

Criteria: The objectives of intemal controls are to provide management with reasonable assurance that 
] assets are safeguarded against loss and that transactions are executed in accordance with managements 
} authorization and recorded properiy to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
1 accounfing principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

j Condithn: We noted that reimbursement requests for several grants were not filed fimely and/or the 
j accounting department had no knowledge ofthe grant details. The following are examples. 

> Under the Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement subgrant#807-3-009, the Police department 
submitted request #12 for reimbursement of their federal share of their expenses of $3,681. This 
request was submitted on January 16, 2009. The City had not received reimbursement as of July 
28,2009. The accounting department was not aware that the reimbursement request was filed and, 
therefore, were unable to monitor the request for timely receipt. 

> Under the Crime Stoppers Cooperative Endeavor agreement, a $21,426 vehicle was purchased by 
the Police department. The request for reimbursement was not submitted. 

> Within the Municipal Bus Fund, the reimbursement for request for the operafing portion of the 
federal UMTA grant was not requested until after April 15*̂  and received on May 18 . Nomnally, this 
request is submitted during December or early January of each year. 

In general, it is very difficult to identify the existence of intergovemmental revenue sources and its related 
supporting documentafion ft^om the associated departments. 

Recommendation: We recommend that a centralized location and individual (such as the Accounting 
Manager) be designated for confi"ol and accounting purposes of all state and federal grant awards. A copy 
of all grants, cooperative endeavor agreements, etc. should be sent to the Accounting Manager at the time 
grant awards are received. At the time the request for reimbursement is submitted to the granting authority, 
a copy of the request should also be sent to the Accounting Manager. When reimbursement is received, 
the requesting department should be notified fimely of the receipt of monies. If payment is not received 
fimely, the requesfing party should be notified by the Accounting Manager that payment has not been 
received in order for that department to follow up on collecting payment for that particular request. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan. 

FINDING 2009-02 HflATERIAL AUDIT ADJUSTMENTS 

Criteria: The objectives of intemal controls include providing management with reasonable assurance that 
transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properiy to permit 
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Schedule o f Findings and Questioned Costs 

for the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Condition and Effect: Control deficiencies resulted in the following material audit adjustments that, in our 
opinion, would not have been detected except for our audit procedures: 

1. Existing controls failed to detect that a prior year approved audit adjustment was not posted 
resulting in an understatement of beginning net assets in the Utility System Fund of $571,924. 

2. Year end accounts payable in the amount of $1,399,305 were unrecorded. It appeared that the 
existing controls were not completely followed resulting in not detecting the unrecorded accounts 
payable. 

3. There is no consistent system to detect and record contributions of capital assets by developers to 
the City. During the year ended April 30, 2009, the contributions of capital assets in the amount of 
$9,390,334 were not initially recorded. 

Recommendations: We offer the following recommendations: 

1. After posting approved audit adjustments, ending fund balance/net assets should be reconciled to 
the related adjusted trail balance. 

2. Existing monitoring procedures to ensure that year end accounts payable are properiy recorded 
should be followed. 

3. Management should develop procedures to capture and record contributions of capital assets by 
developers. 

Management's Response: See Management's Con-ective Action Plan. 

FINDING 2009-03 POLICE AND FIRE ANNUAL LEAVE POLICY 

Criteria: In accordance with the City of Alexandria's annual leave policy, employees ofthe Police and Fire 
Department are allowed to accrue a maximum of 528 vacation hours and a maximum of 480 compensatory 
hours. In addition, in accordance with LA Revised Statije 33:2213.1, the work of an employee for which 
compensatory time may be provided, may not exceed 480 hours of compensatory time off shall, for 
additional overtime hours worked, be paid overtime compensation. 

Condition: Twenty-five employees of the Police Department were allowed to accrue vacation time in excess 
of tiie approved policy, and two employees ofthe Police Department were allowed to accnje compensatory 
time in excess ofthe approved policy and revised statue 33:2213.1. Five employees ofthe Fire Department 
were allowed to accrue vacation time in excess of the approved policy. 

Cause of Condition: The City has not followed the established annual leave policy. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

for the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Effect of Condition: Vacation pay in the amount of $240,724 was accrued for hours exceeding the approved 
policy, and $218 of compensation leave time was accnjed for hours exceeding tiie approved policy, 

Recommendations: We recommend the City follow the polices in effect and/or submit a revision with 
appropriate guidelines for amounts allowed to accrue not within tiie defined limits. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan. 

FINDING 2009-04 UTILITY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

Criteria: It is our understanding tiiat the state constitution provides forthe use of public funds for programs 
of social welfare for the aid and support of the needy by a political subdivision of tiie state. However, case 
law and attomey general opinions indicate that the city must document the following: 

1. The expenditure of public funds, taken as a whole, does not appear to be gratuitous; 

2. The expenditure must be for a public purpose; and 

3. Evidence denronstrating that the public entity has a reasonable expectation of receiving a t)enefrtor 
value at least equivalent to the amount expended. 

The recommended method of documenting the above criteria is through the use of a property executed 
cooperative endeavor agreement. 

Condition: On May 18, 2007, the City entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement (CEA) with the 
Shepherd Center to provide utility assistance to indigent residents of the City. The term of the agreement 
was fnom May 8,2007 through May 8,2008. During the fiscal year ended April 30,2009, subsequent to the 
expiration of the CEA, the City provided $150,000 for utility assistance to the Shepherd Center, 
Management informed us that a new CEA for the period after May 8, 2008 through April 30, 2009 was not 
executed. The utility assistance program continued to operate in accordance with the term of the expired 
CEA except friat $12,000 of tiie $150,000 was utilized by the Shepherd Center as an administrative fee. The 
expired CEA did not contain a provision for an administrative fee. 

Effect: Since the City does not have a current cooperative endeavor agreement with the Shepherd Center, 
the City lacks complete documentation tiiat it meets the three requirements listed above. Also, there is no 
documentation eitiier allowing or disallowing the administrative fee charged by the Shepherd Center. 

Recommendations: We recommend that the City enter into a written cooperative endeavor agreement for 
situations such as this one. The City needs to develop a system for monitoring compliance with terms and 
the agreement, including expiration dates. Cooperative endeavor agreements should be timely renewed as 
needed. In addition, we recommend tiiat the city determine if the use ofthe $12,000 as an administrative 
fee is an allowable use of utility assistance funds. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

for the Year Ended April 30. 2009 

FINDING 2009-05 ALEXANDRIA MUSEUM OF ART 

Criteria: It is our understanding that Article 7, Section 14 ofthe Louisiana Constitution provides, in part, that 
things of value may not be loaned pledged or donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, 
public or private. 

Condition: On September 1, 2006, Louisiana State University (LSU) obtained the use of tiie premises 
known as the Alexandria Museum of Art. On December 15, 2006, the City of Alexandria and LSU entered 
into an interagency agreement by which LSU will grant the use of one office space to the City, in 
consideration for which tiie City will provide utilities and parking on adjoining City property to the Museum. 
The consideration provided by the City to the Museum appears to exceed the rental value of the office 
space. We were informed that no changes to the interagency agreement occurred during tiie current year. 

Effect: The provision of utilities and parking spaces to the Museum with an apparent value much greater 
than the value ofthe office space received for these services may be a violation of Article 7, Section 14 of 
the Louisiana Constitution. 

Recommendatk>n: We continue to recommend that the City's legal council review the interagency 
agreement to determine if it complies with the Louisiana Constitution. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan. 

FINDING 2009^6 FAILURE TO FILE AUDIT REPORT BY DUE DATE 

Criteria: Louisiana Revised Statutes (LSA-RS) 24:513 provides in part that audits of govemmental entities 
shall be completed within six (6) months of the close of the entity's fiscal year and shall be filed with the 
office ofthe Legislative Auditor within that time period. 

Condition: The City of Alexandria contracted witii an entity to perform certain actuarial calculations relative 
to the risk management fund for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2009. After requests for proposals were 
reviewed, the City entered into contract negotiations with tiie service provider and due to numerous 
problems, the contract and work product was not completed timely. The report was received on October 20, 
2009. Time restraints prohibited completion of tiie audit report within the required due date and, therefore, 
was not filed until after the October 31, 2009. Due to this delay, the City of Alexandria requested from the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor an extension to file the report until December 15, 2009. 

Management's Response: See Managemenf s Corrective Action Plan. 

FINDING 2009^7 TIMELY DEPOSITS 

Criteria: According to R.S. 39:1212, all funds of a local depositing authority shall be deposited daily 
whenever practicable. 

Condition: Cash receipts from building pennits are not being deposited daily. Only nine deposits, totaling 
$218,455, were made at the City of Alexandria's Customer Service department during the current fiscal 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

for the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

year. In addition, within the accounting records, approximately one-half of these revenues collected were 
incorrectly classified as miscellaneous revenues. 

In addition, we noted tiiat deposits of Zoo receipts are also not being deposited daily at the Customer 
Service Department Forthe majority of the year, cash deposits varied from once a month to twice a month. 

Cause of Condition: We were infonned tiiatfunds collected are stored in a locked drawer until convenient 
to deposit at the Customer Service Center. 

Recommendation: We recommend that all deposits be made daily whenever practicable, and care should 
be exercised to make sure that receipts are posted to the correct income account witiiin the general ledger. 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan. 

Part III - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 

None Reported 
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PAYNE, MOORE & HERRINGTON, LLP 

[[siiFiEiPoBiicUccoeiiriiii^ 
Establislied 19^5 

Other Comments and Recommendations 

The Mayor and City Council 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements ofthe City of Alexandria, Louisiana, 
as of and for the year ended April 30, 2009, we considered the City's internal controls to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements and not to provkie 
assurance on the intemal controls. 

However, during our audit we became avi^re of matters that are opportunities for strengthening intemal 
controls, operating efficiency, and compliance. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes 
our comments and suggestions regarding those matters. A separate report, dated October 28, 2009 
contains our report on reportable conditions on the City's intemal control. This letter does not affect our 
report, dated October 28, 2009 on the basic financial statements of the City of Alexandria, Louisiana. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already 
discussed many of these comments and suggestions with management personnel, and we will be pleased 
to discuss tiiem in detail at your convenience. 

HmilUaKE*i.E.PJL 
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Memorandum of Other Comments and Recommendations 

Finding 2009-08 Contract renewal 

Condition: Effective May 1,2001, the City entered into a "Claims Services Agreemenr with Mor-Tem Risk 
Management for third party administration services relative to risk management activities. During year 2005, 
an extension agreement was executed forthe period May 1,2005 through April 30,2008. The contractwas 
not renewed upon temiination. Efl'ective October 1,2009, the services are now provided by Hammemian & 
Gainer, Inc. It is our understanding that Mor-Tem Risk Management merged operations with this entity. 

Criteria: A contract does not exist for services provided by Mor-Tem Risk Management and Hammemnan & 
Gainer, Inc. for the period May 1, 2008 tiirough the end of the cun^ent fiscal year. 

Recommendation: We recommend tiiat management enter into a conti^ct witii this entity 

Management's Response: See Management's Corrective Action Plan. 

Finding 2009-09 Lease Agreements 

Condition: We previously reported that on January 11, 2000, the City entered into a proposal between 
Community Receiving Homes, Inc. and the City of Alexandria concerning the leasing of 74,92 acres of land 
adjacent to the intersection of LA Hwy 28 West and LA Hwy 3504 in Rapides Parish, Louisiana. The terms 
ofthe proposal provided in part for the following: 

A) The City of Alexandria agrees to lease from Community Receiving Homes, Inc. tiie front 16.47 
acres bordering LA Hwy 28 West for the sum no less than $100.00 annually per acre, or one 
tiiousand six hundred forty-seven and no/100 dollars ($1,647.00) annually. Tenn of the lease 
was to be 50 years from date of inception, beginning January 1, 2000. 

B) The City of Alexandria agrees to lease from Community Receiving Homes, Inc. the remaining 
58.45 acres for a sum not less than $100.00 per acre annually, or five thousand eight hundred 
forty-five and no/100 dollars ($5,845.00) annually. Term ofthe lease was to be 5 years from 
date of inception beginning January 1, 2000. 

Management continues to report that actual lease agreements have not been formally entered into and that 
the proposal continues to be in effect. Substantial improvements consisting ofthe Johnny Downs Sports 
Complex were constructed on this property. 

Recommendation: We continue to recommend that tiie City Attomey review this matter and advise 
management and the Council of tiie con-ect procedures to remedy this situation. 

Management's Response: See Managements Corrective Action Plan. 
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Special Letter 
Re: Resolution Number 2341-1982 

Requirement of Specific Recommendations 
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PAYNE. MOORE & HERRINGTON. LLP 

[[RIlFIEOPOBLlCiiCCIlUIMS 
EstabliEhed 1945 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 

RE: Resolution Number 2341-1982 
Requirement of specific 
recommendations 

In accordance with Resolution Number 2341-1982, "a resolution relative to the fulfillment of commitments of 
the City of Alexandria relative to the Combined Utilities System", as engaged independent certified public 
accountants, we were requested to include specific recommendations to ensure that the City and the 
Combined Utilities System generate sufficient revenues to pay operation and maintenance expenses of tiie 
Combined Utilities System and debt service on outstanding revenue bonds payable from such revenue, and 
to make all budgeted transfers to otherfunds of tine City. During tiie cun-ent year, the City fulfilled each of 
these commitments. 

For future periods, the City should continue to accomplish the following steps: 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

Prepare and approve an annual operating budget of the Combined Utilities System based upon 
tiie best criteria of revenue and expense estimates that can be reasonably developed. 

Provide for budgetary control on a line item basis and monitor budget variances on a current 
basis. Amendments should be addressed for any unusual exceptions as they are encountered. 

Provide projected monthly cash flow schedules with comparisons to actual, prior, and current 
amounts. Any unusual variances should be investigated. 

Maintain cun-ent and accurate accounting records relative to financial activity of the system. 

Reconcile subsidiary ledgers to appropriate general ledger control accounts on a current basis. 

Provide for a complete review ofthe accounting trial balance and underlying transactions on a 
cument basis for obvious posting errors. Investigate and/or correct unusual items as needed. 

Update utility rate studies as practical and adjust rates as necessary to provide adequate 
revenues to meet budgeted needs. 

Implement other recommendations, if any, relative to the Combined Utilities System as noted in 
our accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

lU 
October 28. 2009 
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Managemenf s Corrective Action Plan 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Corrective Action Plan 

Year Ended April 30, 2009 

The City of Alexandria, Louisiana respecti'ully submits the following con-ective action plan fortiie yearended 
April 30, 2009. 

Independent Public Accounting Firm: 

Auditee Contact Person: 

Audit Period: 

Payne, Moore & Harrington, LLP 
P.O. Box 13200 
Alexandria. Louisiana 71315-3200 

Mr. David Crutchfield 
Director of Finance 
City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
(318)449-5094 

May 1, 2008 tiirough April 30, 2009 

The findings from tiie Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs are discussed below. The findings are 
numbered consistentiy witii the numbers assigned in the Schedule. 

Section I: 
Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported Under 

Govemment Auditing Standards 
Finding 2009-01 Centralized Recordkeeping for Grant Awards 

Response City departments filing for grants will be informed that it is imperative that tiie Accounting 
Department is made aware ofthe existence of any grant, and informed timely of when to 
expect reimbursement from the granting authority. 

Finding 2009-02 

Response 

Material Audit Adjustments 

After posting adjusting entries, fund equity account balances on the Ci t /s accounting 
system will be compared to fund equity account balances on the auditor's system to 
assure that they are in agreement. Existing procedures to detect year end accounts 
payable will be followed. A procedure will be developed to obtain a value on 
contributions of capital assets before they are formally received by the City. 

Finding 2009-03 

Response 

Police and Fire Annual Leave 

The Police and Fire Departments will be reminded ofthe existing procedures to assure 
that they are followed. 

Finding 2009-04 

Response 

Utility Assistance Program 

The cooperative endeavor with the Shepherd Center has been renewed and will be 
renewed each fiscal year as long as tiie pn^gram exists. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Corrective Action Plan 

Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Finding 2009-05 

Response 

Alexandria Museum of Art 

The City's legal counsel is working on a revised agreement that will remove tiie rental 
space and include otiier deliverables to ensure compliance with the Louisiana State 
Constitution. 

Finding 2009-06 

Response 

Failure to File Audit Report by Due Date 

The City of Alexandria applied for and was granted an extension of time to file the audit 
report. The contract for actuarial services covers multiple years and should not cause 
delays In the future. 

Finding 2009-07 

Response 

Timely Deposits 

The involved City departments have been reminded of the Importance of frequent 
deposits to safeguard the funds against theft, botii intemal and extemal, as well as the 
physical risk to employees due to money being kept in an unsecure location. 

Section II: 
Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 

None reported. 

Section III: 
Other Comments and Recommendations 

(Management Letter) 

Finding 2009-08 

Response 

Contract Renewal 

The City will enter into an agreement with Hammerman & Gainer as the successor 
provider to Mor-Tem. 

Finding 2009-09 

Response 

Lease Agreements 

The City Attomey will continue to work out tiie details of the lease agreement with 
Community Receiving Homes, Inc. and the State of Louisiana. 
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City of Alexandria, Louisiana 
Management's Schedule of Prior Year Findings 

For the Year Ended April 30, 2009 

Part 11: | 

Intemal Control And Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

Finding 
2008-01 

Finding 

2008-02 

Finding 

2008-03 

Finding 

2008-04 

Finding 

2008-05 

Purchasing Procedures 

City Utility Accounts 

Utility Rate Codes 

Supporting Documentation - Invoices Paid 

Pay to Retired Policeman 

Resolved. 

Resolved. 

Resolved. 

Resolved. 

Resolved. 

Finding 
1 2008-06 

Finding 
2008-07 

Finding 
2008-08 

Finding 

1 2008-09 

Contract Wortcers vs Employee Relationship 

Alexandria Museum of Art 

Theft Allegation 

Possible Bid Law Violation 

Resolved. 

Partially Resolved. 
See Finding 2009-05 

Resolved. 

Resolved. 

Section 11: 
Other Comments and Recommendations 

(Management Letter) 

Finding 
2008-10 

Finding 
2008-11 

Finding 
2008-12 

Finding 
2008-13 

Approval of Travel Vouchers 

Lease Agreements 

Authorized Check Signers 

Documentation of Utility Billing Office Procedures 

Resolved. 

Not Resolved. See 
Finding 2009-08 

Resolved. 

Resolved. 
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